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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

 

Cautionary Statement About Forward-Looking Statements
This report includes certain “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Statements in the future tense, and

all statements accompanied by terms such as “believe,” “project,” “expect,” “estimate,” “assume,” “intend,” “anticipate,” “target,” “plan,” and variations thereof and similar
terms are intended to be forward-looking statements. We intend that all forward-looking statements we make will be subject to safe harbor protection of the federal securities
laws pursuant to Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

Our disclosure and analysis in this report, in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015 and in our other filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission contain forward-looking statements regarding our intent, belief and current expectations about our strategic direction, prospects and future results. From
time to time, we also provide forward-looking statements in other materials we release as well as oral forward-looking statements. Such statements give our current expectations
or forecasts of future events; they do not relate strictly to historical or current facts. Management believes that these forward-looking statements are reasonable as and when
made. However, caution should be taken not to place undue reliance on any such forward-looking statements because such statements speak only as of the date when made.

Forward-looking statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from our historical experience and our present
expectations or anticipated results. These risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to: general economic conditions, both in the U.S. and internationally; significant
competition on a local, regional, national, and international basis; changes in our relationships with our significant customers; the existing complex and stringent regulation in
the U.S. and internationally, changes to which can impact our business; increased security requirements that may increase our costs of operations and reduce operating
efficiencies; legal, regulatory or market responses to global climate change; negotiation and ratification of labor contracts; strikes, work stoppages and slowdowns by our
employees; the effects of changing prices of energy, including gasoline, diesel and jet fuel, and interruptions in supplies of these commodities; changes in exchange rates or
interest rates; our ability to maintain the image of our brand; breaches in data security; disruptions to the Internet or our technology infrastructure; our ability to accurately
forecast our future capital investment needs; exposure to changing economic, political and social developments in international and emerging markets; changes in business
strategy, government regulations, or economic or market conditions that may result in substantial impairment of our assets; increases in our expenses or funding obligations
relating to employee health, retiree health and/or pension benefits; the potential for various claims and litigation related to labor and employment, personal injury, property
damage, business practices, environmental liability and other matters; our ability to realize the anticipated benefits from acquisitions, joint ventures or strategic alliances; our
ability to manage insurance and claims expenses; and other risks discussed in our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission from time to time, including our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015, or described from time to time in our future reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. You
should consider the limitations on, and risks associated with, forward-looking statements and not unduly rely on the accuracy of predictions contained in such forward-looking
statements. We do not undertake any obligation to update forward-looking statements to reflect events, circumstances, changes in expectations, or the occurrence of
unanticipated events after the date of those statements.
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Item 1. Financial Statements
 

UNITED PARCEL SERVICE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

June 30, 2016 (unaudited) and December 31, 2015
(In millions)

 
June 30, 

2016  
December 31, 

2015

ASSETS    
Current Assets:    

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,059  $ 2,730
Marketable securities 2,613  1,996
Accounts receivable, net 6,111  7,134
Other current assets 1,340  1,348

Total Current Assets 13,123  13,208
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net 18,251  18,352
Goodwill 3,427  3,419
Intangible Assets, Net 1,550  1,549
Non-Current Investments and Restricted Cash 485  473
Deferred Income Tax Assets 310  255
Other Non-Current Assets 1,193  1,055
Total Assets $ 38,339  $ 38,311

LIABILITIES AND SHAREOWNERS’ EQUITY    
Current Liabilities:    

Current maturities of long-term debt and commercial paper $ 2,816  $ 3,018
Accounts payable 2,405  2,587
Accrued wages and withholdings 2,149  2,253
Hedge margin liabilities 582  717
Income taxes payable 133  147
Self-insurance reserves 652  657
Accrued group welfare and retirement plan contributions 559  525
Other current liabilities 665  792

Total Current Liabilities 9,961  10,696
Long-Term Debt 11,550  11,316
Pension and Postretirement Benefit Obligations 11,029  10,638
Deferred Income Tax Liabilities 72  115
Self-Insurance Reserves 1,811  1,831
Other Non-Current Liabilities 1,266  1,224
Shareowners’ Equity:    

Class A common stock (189 and 194 shares issued in 2016 and 2015) 2  2
Class B common stock (691 and 693 shares issued in 2016 and 2015) 7  7
Additional paid-in capital —  —
Retained earnings 6,223  6,001
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (3,606 )  (3,540 )
Deferred compensation obligations 44  51
Less: Treasury stock (1 share in 2016 and 2015) (44 )  (51 )

Total Equity for Controlling Interests 2,626  2,470
Noncontrolling Interests 24  21

Total Shareowners’ Equity 2,650  2,491
Total Liabilities and Shareowners’ Equity $ 38,339  $ 38,311

See notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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UNITED PARCEL SERVICE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED INCOME

(In millions, except per share amounts)
(unaudited)

 

 

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2016  2015 2016  2015

Revenue $ 14,629  $ 14,095 $ 29,047  $ 28,072
Operating Expenses:       

Compensation and benefits 7,738  7,502 15,591  15,066
Repairs and maintenance 383  357 764  707
Depreciation and amortization 555  510 1,107  1,016
Purchased transportation 2,070  1,777 4,094  3,631
Fuel 505  639 939  1,283
Other occupancy 245  230 514  524
Other expenses 1,095  1,120 2,177  2,212

Total Operating Expenses 12,591  12,135 25,186  24,439
Operating Profit 2,038  1,960 3,861  3,633
Other Income and (Expense):       

Investment income and other 8  4 25  8
Interest expense (94 ) (86 ) (187 )  (173 )

Total Other Income and (Expense) (86 )  (82 ) (162 )  (165 )
Income Before Income Taxes 1,952  1,878 3,699  3,468
Income Tax Expense 683  648 1,299  1,212
Net Income $ 1,269  $ 1,230 $ 2,400  $ 2,256
Basic Earnings Per Share $ 1.43  $ 1.37 $ 2.71  $ 2.50
Diluted Earnings Per Share $ 1.43  $ 1.35 $ 2.69  $ 2.48

 

STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In millions)
(unaudited)

 

 
Three Months Ended

June 30,
Six Months Ended

June 30,

 2016  2015 2016  2015

Net Income $ 1,269  $ 1,230 $ 2,400  $ 2,256
Change in foreign currency translation adjustment, net of tax (31)  101 (5)  (203)
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on marketable securities, net of tax 2  (1) 5  1
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on cash flow hedges, net of tax 43  (159) (119)  17
Change in unrecognized pension and postretirement benefit costs, net of tax 27  20 53  52
Comprehensive Income $ 1,310  $ 1,191 $ 2,334  $ 2,123

See notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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UNITED PARCEL SERVICE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS

(In millions)
(unaudited)

 
Six Months Ended

June 30,

 2016  2015

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:    
Net income $ 2,400  $ 2,256

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities:    
Depreciation and amortization 1,107  1,016
Pension and postretirement benefit expense 537  539
Pension and postretirement benefit contributions (89 )  (99 )
Self-insurance provision (25 )  (22 )
Deferred tax (benefit) expense (31 )  (140 )
Stock compensation expense 346  328
Other (gains) losses (105 )  (51 )
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects of business acquisitions:    

Accounts receivable 1,054  880
Other current assets 230  301
Accounts payable (310 )  (558 )
Accrued wages and withholdings (73 )  (179 )
Other current liabilities (356 )  14

Other operating activities 8  (46 )
Net cash from operating activities 4,693  4,239

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:    
Capital expenditures (963 )  (958 )
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment 11  8
Purchases of marketable securities (3,131 )  (4,553 )
Sales and maturities of marketable securities 2,340  2,840
Net (increase) decrease in finance receivables (13 )  (13 )
Cash paid for business acquisitions, net of cash and cash equivalents acquired (3 )  (90 )
Other investing activities (35 )  (10 )

Net cash used in investing activities (1,794 )  (2,776 )
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

   
Net change in short-term debt (1,781 )  2,319
Proceeds from borrowings 2,890  1,572
Repayments of borrowings (1,134 )  (1,488 )
Purchases of common stock (1,329 )  (1,348 )
Issuances of common stock 147  140
Dividends (1,327 )  (1,270 )
Other financing activities (50 )  (177 )

Net cash used in financing activities (2,584 )  (252 )
Effect Of Exchange Rate Changes On Cash And Cash Equivalents 14  (72 )
Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash And Cash Equivalents 329  1,139
Cash And Cash Equivalents:    

Beginning of period 2,730  2,291
End of period $ 3,059  $ 3,430

See notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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UNITED PARCEL SERVICE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 

NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Principles of Consolidation

In our opinion, the accompanying interim, unaudited, consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Rule 10-01 of Regulation S-X. These consolidated financial statements contain
all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) necessary to present fairly our financial position as of June 30, 2016, our results of operations for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, and cash flows for the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015. The results reported in these consolidated financial statements should
not be regarded as necessarily indicative of results that may be expected for any other period or the entire year. The interim consolidated financial statements should be read in
conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015.

For interim consolidated financial statement purposes, we provide for accruals under our various employee benefit plans and self-insurance reserves for each three month
period based on one quarter of the estimated annual expense.

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. These reclassifications had no material impact on our financial position or
results of operations.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The carrying amounts of our cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, finance receivables and accounts payable approximate fair value as of June 30, 2016. The fair

values of our investment securities are disclosed in note 4, recognized multiemployer pension withdrawal liabilities in note 6, our short and long-term debt in note 9 and our
derivative instruments in note 14. We utilized Level 1 inputs in the fair value hierarchy of valuation techniques to determine the fair value of our cash and cash equivalents, and
Level 2 inputs to determine the fair value of our accounts receivable, finance receivables and accounts payable.

Accounting Estimates
The preparation of the accompanying interim, unaudited, consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported

amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingencies at the date of the consolidated financial statements, as well as the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Estimates have been prepared on the basis of the most current and best information and actual results could differ materially from those
estimates.
 

NOTE 2. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Adoption of New Accounting Standards

In May 2015, the FASB issued an accounting standards update that changes the disclosure requirement for reporting investments at fair value. This update removes the
requirement to categorize investments for which fair value is measured using the net asset value per share practical expedient within the fair value hierarchy. These disclosures
are limited to investments for which the entity has elected to measure fair value using the practical expedient. This guidance became effective for us in the first quarter of 2016
and did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In June 2014, the FASB issued an accounting standards update for companies that grant their employees share-based payments in which the terms of the award provide
that a performance target that affects vesting could be achieved after the requisite service period. This guidance became effective for us in the first quarter of 2015 and did not
have a material impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Other accounting pronouncements adopted during the periods covered by the consolidated financial statements did not have a material impact on our consolidated
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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UNITED PARCEL SERVICE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Accounting Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective

In March 2016, the FASB issued an accounting standards update that simplifies the income tax accounting and cash flow presentation related to share-based compensation
by requiring the recognition of all excess tax benefits and deficiencies directly on the income statement and classification as cash flows from operating activities on the
statement of cash flows. This update also makes several changes to the accounting for forfeitures and employee tax withholding on share-based compensation. This new
guidance becomes effective for us in the first quarter of 2017, but early adoption is permitted. At this time, we do not expect this accounting standards update to have a material
impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In February 2016, the FASB issued an accounting standards update that requires all leases with terms beyond twelve months to be recognized on the balance sheet.
Although the distinction between operating and finance leases will continue to exist under the new standard, the recognition and measurement of expenses and cash flows will
not change significantly from current treatment. This new guidance requires modified retrospective application and becomes effective for us in the first quarter of 2019, but
early adoption is permitted. We are currently evaluating this update to determine the full impact of its adoption, but we expect material changes to our consolidated financial
position.

In January 2016, the FASB issued an accounting standards update which addresses certain aspects of the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
financial instruments. The amendment will be effective for us beginning the first quarter of 2018. At this time, we do not expect this accounting standards update to have a
material impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In May 2014, the FASB issued an accounting standards update that changes the revenue recognition for companies that enter into contracts with customers to transfer
goods or services. This amended guidance requires revenue to be recognized in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled for those
goods and services when the performance obligation has been satisfied. This amended guidance also requires enhanced disclosures regarding the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and related cash flows arising from contracts with customers. In August 2015, the FASB issued an accounting standards update that defers the effective
date of the new revenue recognition guidance for one year, to interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017. Early adoption is permitted for periods
beginning after December 15, 2016. In March 2016, the FASB issued an accounting standards update that further clarifies the May 2014 accounting standards update with
respect to principle versus agent considerations in revenue from contracts with customers. In the second quarter of 2016, the FASB issued two accounting standard updates that
provide additional guidance when identifying performance obligations and licenses as well as allowing for certain narrow scope improvements and practical expedients. These
accounting standard updates have the same effective date as the original standard. We are currently evaluating these updates to determine the full impact of adoption.

Other accounting pronouncements issued, but not effective until after June 30, 2016, are not expected to have a material impact on our consolidated financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.
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UNITED PARCEL SERVICE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION
We issue employee share-based awards under the UPS Incentive Compensation Plan, which permits the grant of nonqualified and incentive stock options, stock

appreciation rights, restricted stock and stock units, and restricted performance shares and performance units, to eligible employees (restricted stock and stock units, restricted
performance shares and performance units are herein referred to as "Restricted Units"). Upon vesting, Restricted Units result in the issuance of the equivalent number of UPS
class A common shares after required tax withholdings. Dividends accrued on Restricted Units are reinvested in additional Restricted Units at each dividend payable date, and
are subject to the same vesting and forfeiture conditions as the underlying Restricted Units upon which they are earned.

The primary compensation programs offered under the UPS Incentive Compensation Plan include the UPS Management Incentive Award program, the UPS Long-Term
Incentive Performance Award program and the UPS Stock Option program. We also maintain an employee stock purchase plan which allows eligible employees to purchase
shares of UPS class A common stock at a discount. Additionally, our matching contributions to the primary employee defined contribution savings plan are made in shares of
UPS class A common stock.

Management Incentive Award Program ("MIP")
During the first quarter of 2016, we granted Restricted Units under MIP to certain eligible management employees. Restricted Units granted under MIP generally vest

over a five-year period with approximately 20% of the award vesting on January 15th of each of the years following the grant date (except in the case of death, disability, or
retirement, in which case immediate vesting occurs). The entire grant is expensed on a straight-line basis (less estimated forfeitures) ratably over the requisite service period.
Based on the date that the eligible management population and performance targets were approved for MIP, we determined the award measurement date to be February 4, 2016
(for U.S.-based employees), March 2, 2016 (for management committee employees) and March 21, 2016 (for international-based employees); therefore, the Restricted Units
awarded were valued for stock compensation expense purposes using the closing New York Stock Exchange price of $96.25, $98.77 and $105.15 on those dates, respectively.

Long-Term Incentive Performance Award Program ("LTIP")
We award Restricted Units under LTIP to certain eligible management employees. The performance targets are equally-weighted among adjusted consolidated operating

return on invested capital, growth in adjusted consolidated revenue and total shareowner return relative to a peer group of companies.  These Restricted Units generally vest at
the end of a three-year period (except in the case of death, disability, or retirement, in which case immediate vesting occurs on a prorated basis). The number of Restricted Units
earned will be based on the percentage achievement of the performance targets established on the grant date. 

For the two-thirds of the award related to consolidated operating return on invested capital and growth in consolidated revenue, we recognize the grant-date fair value of
these Restricted Units (less estimated forfeitures) as compensation expense ratably over the vesting period, based on the number of awards expected to be earned.  Based on the
date that the eligible management population and performance targets were approved for the 2016 LTIP Award, we determined the award measurement date to be March 24,
2016; therefore, the target Restricted Units awarded for this portion of the award were valued for stock compensation expense using the closing New York Stock Exchange price
of $105.43 on that date.

The remaining one-third of the award related to total shareowner return relative to a peer group is valued using a Monte Carlo model. The model utilized the following
assumptions: expected volatility of 16.45% based on historical stock volatility, a risk-free rate of return of 1.01% and no expected dividend yield because the units earn dividend
equivalents.  This portion of the award was valued with a grant date fair value of $135.57 per unit and is recognized as compensation expense (less estimated forfeitures) ratably
over the vesting period. 
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UNITED PARCEL SERVICE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nonqualified Stock Options
During the first quarter of 2016, we granted nonqualified stock option awards to a limited group of eligible senior management employees under the UPS Stock Option

program. Stock option awards generally vest over a five-year period with approximately 20% of the award vesting at each anniversary date of the grant (except in the case of
death, disability, or retirement, in which case immediate vesting occurs). The options granted will expire ten years after the date of the grant. In the first quarter of 2016 and
2015, we granted 0.2 million stock options, respectively, at a grant price of $98.77 and $101.93, respectively. The grant price was based on the closing New York Stock
Exchange price of March 2, 2016 and March 2, 2015, respectively. The weighted average fair value of our employee stock options granted, as determined by the Black-Scholes
valuation model, was $17.32 and $18.07 for 2016 and 2015, respectively, using the following assumptions:

 2016  2015

Expected life (in years) 7.5  7.5
Risk-free interest rate 1.66%  2.07%
Expected volatility 23.60%  20.61%
Expected dividend yield 2.94%  2.63%

Compensation expense for share-based awards recognized in net income for the three months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $131 and $134 million pre-tax, respectively.
Compensation expense for share-based awards recognized in net income for the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $346 and $328 million pre-tax, respectively.
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UNITED PARCEL SERVICE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 4. INVESTMENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH

The following is a summary of marketable securities classified as trading and available-for-sale as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 (in millions):

 Cost  
Unrealized

Gains  
Unrealized

Losses  
Estimated
Fair Value

June 30, 2016:        
Current trading marketable securities:        

Corporate debt securities $ 1,358  $ —  $ —  $ 1,358
Carbon credit investments (1) 431  —  (178 )  253

Total trading marketable securities $ 1,789  $ —  $ (178)  $ 1,611
        

Current available-for-sale securities:        
U.S. government and agency debt securities $ 339  $ 4  $ —  $ 343
Mortgage and asset-backed debt securities 77  1  —  78
Corporate debt securities 573  2  —  575
U.S. state and local municipal debt securities 1  —  —  1
Equity Securities 2  —  —  2
Non-U.S. government debt securities 3  —  —  3

Total available-for-sale marketable securities $ 995  $ 7  $ —  $ 1,002
        

Total current marketable securities $ 2,784  $ 7  $ (178)  $ 2,613

        

 Cost  
Unrealized

Gains  
Unrealized

Losses  
Estimated
Fair Value

December 31, 2015:        
Current trading marketable securities:        

Corporate debt securities $ 715  $ —  $ —  $ 715
Non-U.S. government debt securities (1) 363  —  —  363
Carbon credit investments (1) 347  9  (5 )  351

Total trading marketable securities $ 1,425  $ 9  $ (5)  $ 1,429
        

Current available-for-sale securities:        
U.S. government and agency debt securities $ 341  $ —  $ (1)  $ 340
Mortgage and asset-backed debt securities 74  1  (1 )  74
Corporate debt securities 147  —  (1 )  146
U.S. state and local municipal debt securities 2  —  —  2
Equity securities 2  —  —  2
Non-U.S. government debt securities 3  —  —  3

Total available-for-sale marketable securities $ 569  $ 1  $ (3)  $ 567
        

Total current marketable securities $ 1,994  $ 10  $ (8)  $ 1,996
(1) These investments are hedged with forward contracts that are not designated in hedging relationships. See Note 14 for offsetting statement of consolidated income impact.
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UNITED PARCEL SERVICE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investment Other-Than-Temporary Impairments
We have concluded that no material other-than-temporary impairment losses existed as of June 30, 2016. In making this determination, we considered the financial

condition and prospects of the issuers, the magnitude of the losses compared with the investments’ cost, the length of time the investments have been in an unrealized loss
position, the probability that we will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the securities, the credit rating of the securities and our ability and
intent to hold these investments until the anticipated recovery in market value occurs.

Maturity Information
The amortized cost and estimated fair value of marketable securities at June 30, 2016, by contractual maturity, are shown below (in millions). Actual maturities may differ

from contractual maturities because the issuers of the securities may have the right to prepay obligations without prepayment penalties.

 Cost  
Estimated
Fair Value

Due in one year or less $ 1,816  $ 1,816
Due after one year through three years 449  452
Due after three years through five years 15  15
Due after five years 71  75
 2,351  2,358
Equity and carbon credit investments 433  255
 $ 2,784  $ 2,613

Non-Current Investments and Restricted Cash
We had $444 and $442 million of restricted cash related to our self-insurance requirements as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 which is reported in non-current

investments and restricted cash on the consolidated balance sheets. This restricted cash is primarily invested in money market funds.
At June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, we held a $19 million investment in a variable life insurance policy to fund benefits for the UPS Excess Coordinating Benefit

Plan. Additionally, we held escrowed cash related to the acquisition and disposition of certain assets of $22 and $12 million as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015,
respectively. The amounts described above are classified as non-current investments and restricted cash on the consolidated balance sheets, while the quarterly change in
investment fair value is recognized in investment income and other on the statements of consolidated income.

Fair Value Measurements
Marketable securities utilizing Level 1 inputs include active exchange-traded carbon credit investments and certain U.S. Government debt securities, as these securities

have quoted prices in active markets. Marketable securities utilizing Level 2 inputs include asset-backed and equity securities and corporate, government, and municipal bonds.
These securities are valued using market corroborated pricing, matrix pricing or other models that utilize observable inputs such as yield curves.

We maintain holdings in certain investment partnerships that are measured at fair value utilizing Level 3 inputs (classified as other non-current investments in the tables
below and as other non-current assets in the consolidated balance sheets). These partnership holdings do not have quoted prices, nor can they be valued using inputs based on
observable market data. These investments are valued internally using a discounted cash flow model with two significant inputs: (1) the after-tax cash flow projections for each
partnership and (2) the risk-adjusted discount rate consistent with the duration of the expected cash flows for each partnership. The weighted-average discount rates used to value
these investments were 7.50% and 8.22% as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively. These inputs, and the resulting fair values, are updated on a quarterly basis.
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The following table presents information about our investments measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, and indicates the
fair value hierarchy of the valuation techniques utilized to determine such fair value (in millions):

 

Quoted Prices
in Active

Markets for
Identical Assets

(Level 1)  

Significant Other
Observable Inputs

(Level 2)  

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)  Balance 

June 30, 2016:        
Marketable Securities:        

U.S. government and agency debt securities $ 343  $ —  $ —  $ 343
Mortgage and asset-backed debt securities —  78  —  78
Corporate debt securities —  1,932  —  1,932
U.S. state and local municipal debt securities —  2  —  2
Equity securities —  2  —  2
Non-U.S. government debt securities —  3  —  3
Carbon credit investments 253  —  —  253

Total marketable securities 596  2,017  —  2,613
Other non-current investments 19  —  22  41

Total $ 615  $ 2,017  $ 22  $ 2,654

December 31, 2015:        
Marketable Securities:        

U.S. government and agency debt securities $ 340  $ —  $ —  $ 340
Mortgage and asset-backed debt securities —  74  —  74
Corporate debt securities —  861  —  861
U.S. state and local municipal debt securities —  2  —  2
Equity securities —  2  —  2
Non-U.S. government debt securities —  366  —  366
Carbon credit investments 351  —  —  351

Total marketable securities 691  1,305  —  1,996
Other non-current investments 19  —  32  51

Total $ 710  $ 1,305  $ 32  $ 2,047
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The following table presents the changes in the above Level 3 instruments measured on a recurring basis for the three months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 (in
millions):    

 
Marketable
Securities  

Other
Non-Current
Investments  Total

Balance on April 1, 2016 $ —  $ 27  $ 27
Transfers into (out of) Level 3 —  —  —
Net realized and unrealized gains (losses):      

Included in earnings (in investment income and other) —  (5 )  (5 )
Included in accumulated other comprehensive income (pre-tax) —  —  —

Purchases —  —  —
Sales —  —  —
Balance on June 30, 2016 $ —  $ 22  $ 22

      
      

 
Marketable
Securities  

Other
Non-Current
Investments  Total

Balance on April 1, 2015 $ —  $ 56  $ 56
Transfers into (out of) Level 3 —  —  —
Net realized and unrealized gains (losses):      

Included in earnings (in investment income and other) —  (8 )  (8 )
Included in accumulated other comprehensive income (pre-tax) —  —  —

Purchases —  —  —
Sales —  —  —
Balance on June 30, 2015 $ —  $ 48  $ 48
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The following table presents the changes in the above Level 3 instruments measured on a recurring basis for the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 (in millions):

      
 

Marketable
Securities  

Other
Investments  Total

Balance on January 1, 2016 $ —  32  32
Transfers into (out of) Level 3 —  —  —
Net realized and unrealized gains (losses):      

Included in earnings (in investment income and other) —  (10 )  (10)
Included in accumulated other comprehensive income (pre-tax) —  —  —

Purchases —  —  —
Sales —  —  —
Balance on June 30, 2016 $ —  $ 22  $ 22

      

 
Marketable
Securities  

Other
Investments  Total

Balance on January 1, 2015 $ —  64  64
Transfers into (out of) Level 3 —  —  —
Net realized and unrealized gains (losses):      

Included in earnings (in investment income and other) —  (16 )  (16)
Included in accumulated other comprehensive income (pre-tax) —  —  —

Purchases —  —  —
Sales —  —  —
Balance on June 30, 2015 $ —  $ 48 $ 48

There were no transfers of investments between Level 1 and Level 2 during the three and six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015.
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NOTE 5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 consist of the following (in millions):

 2016  2015

Vehicles $ 8,242  $ 8,111
Aircraft 15,820  15,815
Land 1,290  1,263
Buildings 3,378  3,280
Building and leasehold improvements 3,558  3,450
Plant equipment 8,191  8,026
Technology equipment 1,699  1,670
Equipment under operating leases 29  30
Construction-in-progress 393  273
 42,600  41,918
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (24,349 )  (23,566 )
 $ 18,251  $ 18,352
 

We monitor all property, plant and equipment for any indicators of potential impairment. No impairment charges on property, plant and equipment were recorded during
the three and six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015.
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NOTE 6. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Company-Sponsored Benefit Plans
Information about net periodic benefit cost for our company-sponsored pension and postretirement benefit plans is as follows for the three and six months ended June 30,

2016 and 2015 (in millions):

 

U.S. Pension Benefits  
U.S. Postretirement

Medical Benefits  
International

Pension Benefits

2016  2015  2016  2015  2016  2015
Three Months Ended June 30:            
Service cost $ 353  $ 381  $ 7  $ 8  $ 13  $ 13
Interest cost 457  424  30  30  11  11
Expected return on assets (629)  (622)  (1)  (4)  (15)  (16)
Amortization of prior service cost 42  42  1  1  —  1
Net periodic benefit cost $ 223  $ 225  $ 37  $ 35  $ 9  $ 9

            

 

U.S. Pension Benefits  
U.S. Postretirement

Medical Benefits  
International

Pension Benefits

2016  2015  2016  2015  2016  2015
Six Months Ended June 30:            
Service cost $ 706  $ 763  $ 14  $ 17  $ 25  $ 25
Interest cost 914  847  60  61  21  22
Expected return on assets (1,258)  (1,244)  (2)  (8)  (29)  (31)
Amortization of prior service cost 84  84  2  2  —  1
Net periodic benefit cost $ 446  $ 450  $ 74  $ 72  $ 17  $ 17

During the first six months of 2016, we contributed $44 and $45 million to our company-sponsored pension and postretirement medical benefit plans, respectively. We
also expect to contribute $1.192 billion and $56 million over the remainder of the year to the pension and U.S. postretirement medical benefit plans, respectively.

The UPS Retirement Plan (a single-employer defined benefit pension plan sponsored by UPS) was closed to new non-union participants effective July 1, 2016. The
Company amended the UPS 401(k) Savings Plan so that employees who previously would have been eligible for participation in the UPS Retirement Plan will, in addition to
current benefits under the UPS 401(k) Savings Plan, begin receiving a UPS Retirement Contribution. For employees eligible to receive the Retirement Contribution, UPS will
contribute 3% to 8% of eligible pay to the UPS 401(k) Savings Plan based on years of vesting service and business unit. Contributions will be made annually in cash to the
accounts of participants who are employed on December 31 of each calendar year and become vested after the employee reaches three complete years of service.

Multiemployer Benefit Plans
We contribute to a number of multiemployer defined benefit and health and welfare plans under terms of collective bargaining agreements that cover our union-

represented employees. Our current collective bargaining agreements set forth the annual contribution increases allotted to the plans that we participate in, and we are in
compliance with these contribution rates. These limitations on annual contribution rates will remain in effect throughout the terms of the existing collective bargaining
agreements.

As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 we had $869 and $872 million, respectively, recognized in "other non-current liabilities" on our consolidated balance sheets
associated with our previous withdrawal from a multiemployer pension plan. This liability is payable in equal monthly installments over a remaining term of approximately 46
years. Based on the borrowing rates currently available to the Company for long-term financing of a similar maturity, the fair value of this withdrawal liability as of June 30,
2016 and December 31, 2015 was $942 and $841 million, respectively. We utilized Level 2 inputs in the fair value hierarchy of valuation techniques to determine the fair value
of this liability.

In December 2014, Congress passed the Multiemployer Pension Reform Act (“MPRA”), which for the first time ever allowed multi-employer pension plans to reduce
benefit payments to retirees, subject to specific guidelines in the statute and government oversight. On September 25, 2015, the Central States Pension Fund ("CSPF") submitted
a proposed pension benefit

15



Table of Contents
UNITED PARCEL SERVICE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

reduction plan to the U.S. Department of Treasury under the MPRA. The CSPF plan proposed to make retirement benefit reductions to CSPF participants, including to the
benefits of UPS employee participants retiring on or after January 1, 2008. In 2007, UPS fully funded its allocable share of the unfunded vested benefits in CSPF when it was
agreed that UPS could withdraw from CSPF in consideration of a $6.1 billion withdrawal liability. Under a collective bargaining agreement with the International Brotherhood
of Teamsters, UPS also agreed to provide coordinating benefits under the UPS/IBT Full-Time Employee Pension Plan (the “UPS/IBT Pension Plan”) to offset the effect of
certain benefit reductions by CSPF applicable to UPS participants retiring on or after January 1, 2008, which resulted in the recognition of a $1.7 billion pension liability in
2007. Additionally, UPS agreed to provide coordinating benefits under the UPS/IBT Pension Plan to offset certain benefit reductions in the event that benefits were lawfully
reduced in the future by CSPF.

We vigorously challenged the proposed benefit reduction plan because we believed that it did not comply with the law and that certain actions by CSPF were invalid. In
April 2016, we estimated that we would be required to record a 2016 charge of approximately $3.2 billion to $3.8 billion, if the CSPF pension benefit reduction plan was
approved and implemented as proposed. On May 6, 2016, the U.S. Department of Treasury rejected the proposed plan submitted by CSPF, stating that it had determined that the
CSPF plan failed to satisfy a number of requirements set forth in the MPRA.

The CSPF has asserted that it will become insolvent within ten years which could lead to the reduction of retirement benefits. As a result, it is possible that the CSPF will
continue to explore options for making retirement benefit reductions to plan participants to forestall insolvency. If the CSPF reduces benefits to plan participants, UPS may be
required to provide coordinating benefits under the UPS/IBT Pension Plan, thereby increasing the projected benefit obligation for the UPS/IBT Pension Plan. The potential for
benefit reductions to CSPF plan participants is subject to a number of uncertainties, including actions that may be taken by CSPF, the federal government or others. These
actions include whether the CSPF will submit a revised benefit reduction plan, the effect of discount rates and various other actuarial assumptions and the extent to which
benefits are guaranteed by the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation. Due to the numerous uncertainties that could affect whether, and the extent to which, benefits to CSPF
plan participants are reduced, we are not currently able to estimate a range of additional obligations, if any, that could arise to UPS. We will continue to assess the impact of
these uncertainties on the projected benefit obligation of the UPS/IBT Pension Plan in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification Topic 715 - Compensation -
Retirement Benefits. We have not recognized any liability for additional coordinating benefits at this time, but the current projected benefit obligation for the UPS/IBT Pension
Plan could significantly increase as a result of these matters.

Collective Bargaining Agreements
As of December 31, 2015, we had approximately 266,000 employees employed under a national master agreement and various supplemental agreements with local

unions affiliated with the Teamsters. In addition, our airline pilots, airline mechanics, ground mechanics and certain other employees are employed under other collective
bargaining agreements. In 2014, the Teamsters ratified a new national master agreement (“NMA”) with UPS that will expire on July 31, 2018. The economic provisions in the
NMA included wage rate increases, as well as increased contribution rates for healthcare and pension benefits. Most of these economic provisions were retroactive to August 1,
2013, which was the effective date of the NMA. During the first quarter of 2015, we remitted $53 million for these retroactive economic benefits.

We have approximately 2,600 pilots who are employed under a collective bargaining agreement with the Independent Pilots Association ("IPA"), which became
amendable at the end of 2011. On June 30, 2016, the IPA and the Company announced a tentative agreement on a new five-year labor contract. The contract must be ratified by
a majority of UPS's 2,600 pilots. The vote by the pilots will be completed on August 31. If ratified, the new contract will become effective on September 1, 2016, and become
amendable on September 1, 2021.

Our airline mechanics are covered by a collective bargaining agreement with Teamsters Local 2727, which became amendable November 1, 2013. We are currently in
negotiations with Teamsters Local 2727 for a new agreement. In addition, approximately 3,100 of our auto and maintenance mechanics who are not employed under
agreements with the Teamsters are employed under collective bargaining agreements with the International Association of Machinists and Aerospace Workers (“IAM”) that
will expire on July 31, 2019.
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NOTE 7. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The following table indicates the allocation of goodwill by reportable segment as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 (in millions):

 
U.S. Domestic

Package  
International

Package  
Supply Chain &

Freight  Consolidated

December 31, 2015: $ 715  $ 425  $ 2,279  $ 3,419
Acquired —  —  —  —

Currency / Other $ —  $ 2  $ 6  $ 8
June 30, 2016: $ 715  $ 427  $ 2,285  $ 3,427

The change in goodwill for both the International Package and Supply Chain & Freight segments was primarily due to the impact of changes in the value of the
U.S. Dollar on the translation of non-U.S. Dollar goodwill balances.

The following is a summary of intangible assets as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 (in millions):

 
Gross Carrying

Amount  
Accumulated
Amortization  

Net Carrying
Value

June 30, 2016:      
Capitalized software $ 2,865  $ (2,123)  $ 742
Licenses 211  (135 )  76
Franchise rights 128  (86 )  42
Customer relationships 509  (59 )  450
Trade name 200  —  200
Trademarks, patents and other 58  (18 )  40
Total Intangible Assets, Net $ 3,971 $ (2,421)  $ 1,550

December 31, 2015:      
Capitalized software $ 2,739  $ (2,026)  $ 713
Licenses 189  (116 )  73
Franchise rights 125  (83 )  42
Customer relationships 511  (35 )  476
Trade name 200  —  200
Trademarks, patents and other 61  (16 )  45
Total Intangible Assets, Net $ 3,825  $ (2,276)  $ 1,549

As of June 30, 2016, we had a trade name with a carrying value of $200 million and licenses with a carrying value of $4 million, which are deemed to be indefinite-lived
intangible assets and are included in the table above.
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NOTE 8. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

In 2016 and 2015, we acquired several businesses that were not material, individually or in the aggregate, to our consolidated financial position or results of operations.
These acquisitions were funded with cash from operations. In March 2015, we acquired Poltraf Sp z.o.o. ("Poltraf"), a Polish-based pharmaceutical logistics company
recognized for its temperature-sensitive warehousing and transportation solutions. In May 2015 and June 2015, we acquired Parcel Pro, Inc. ("Parcel Pro") and the Insured
Parcel Services division of G4S International Logistics ("IPS"), respectively. These businesses provide services and insurance coverage for the transport of high value luxury
goods.

In August 2015, we acquired Coyote Logistics Midco, Inc. ("Coyote"), a U.S.-based truckload freight brokerage company, for $1.829 billion. This acquisition allows us to
expand our existing portfolio by adding large scale truckload freight brokerage and transportation management services to our Supply Chain & Freight reporting segment. In
addition, we expect to benefit from synergies in purchased transportation, backhaul utilization, cross-selling to customers, as well as technology systems and industry best
practices. The acquisition was funded using cash from operations and issuances of commercial paper.

The estimates of deferred income taxes and goodwill are subject to change based on final determination of fair values of acquired assets and assumed liabilities, which will
occur in the third quarter of 2016. The purchase price allocation for acquired companies can be modified for up to one year from the date of acquisition. No material changes in
the purchase price allocation have been made since December 31, 2015.

The financial results of these acquired businesses are included in the Supply Chain & Freight segment from the date of acquisition and were not material to our results of
operations.
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NOTE 9. DEBT AND FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS
The carrying value of our outstanding debt as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 consists of the following (in millions):

 Principal
Amount

   Carrying Value

  Maturity  2016  2015

Commercial paper $ 2,751  2016  $ 2,749  $ 2,965
Fixed-rate senior notes:        

1.125% senior notes 375  2017  375  372
5.50% senior notes 750  2018  784  787
5.125% senior notes 1,000  2019  1,073  1,064
3.125% senior notes 1,500  2021  1,656  1,613
2.45% senior notes 1,000  2022  1,042  991
6.20% senior notes 1,500  2038  1,481  1,481
4.875% senior notes 500  2040  489  489
3.625% senior notes 375  2042  367  367

8.375% Debentures:        
8.375% debentures 424  2020  480  474
8.375% debentures 276  2030  282  282

Pound Sterling notes:        
5.50% notes 89  2031  82  92
5.125% notes 611  2050  574  638

Euro Senior notes:        
1.625% notes 778  2025  771  759
Floating rate senior notes 555  2020  553  544

Floating rate senior notes 798  2049-2066  790  600
Capital lease obligations 466  2016-3005  466  475
Facility notes and bonds 320  2016-2045  319  319
Other debt 32  2016-2022  33  22
Total Debt 14,100    14,366  14,334

Less: Current Maturities     (2,816)  (3,018)
Long-term Debt     $ 11,550  $ 11,316

Debt Issuances

In March 2016, we issued floating rate senior notes with a principal balance of $118 million and in June 2016, we issued an additional $74 million of floating rate senior
notes. These notes bear interest at three-month LIBOR less 30 basis points and mature in 2066. These notes are callable at various times after 30 years at a stated percentage of
par value, and putable by the note holders at various times after one year at a stated percentage of par value.

Sources of Credit
We are authorized to borrow up to $10.0 billion under a U.S. commercial paper program and €5.0 billion (in a variety of currencies) under a European commercial paper

program. We had the following amounts outstanding under these programs as of June 30, 2016: $1.952 billion with an average interest rate of 0.47% and €718 million ($797
million) with an average interest rate of -0.31%. As of June 30, 2016, we have classified the entire commercial paper balance as a current liability on our consolidated balance
sheet.
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We maintain two credit agreements with a consortium of banks. One of these agreements provides revolving credit facilities of $1.5 billion, and expires on March 24,
2017. Generally, amounts outstanding under this facility bear interest at a periodic fixed rate equal to LIBOR for the applicable interest period and currency denomination, plus
an applicable margin. Alternatively, a fluctuating rate of interest equal to the highest of (1) JPMorgan Chase Bank’s publicly announced prime rate; (2) the Federal Funds
effective rate plus 0.50%; and (3) LIBOR for a one month interest period plus 1.00%, plus an applicable margin, may be used at our discretion. In each case, the applicable
margin for advances bearing interest based on LIBOR is a percentage determined by quotations from Markit Group Ltd. for our 1-year credit default swap spread, subject to a
minimum rate of 0.10% and a maximum rate of 0.75%. The applicable margin for advances bearing interest based on the prime rate is 1.00% below the applicable margin for
LIBOR advances (but not lower than 0.00%). We are also able to request advances under this facility based on competitive bids for the applicable interest rate. There were no
amounts outstanding under this facility as of June 30, 2016.

The second agreement provides revolving credit facilities of $3.0 billion, and expires on March 25, 2021. Generally, amounts outstanding under this facility bear interest
at a periodic fixed rate equal to LIBOR for the applicable interest period and currency denomination, plus an applicable margin. Alternatively, a fluctuating rate of interest equal
to the highest of (1) JPMorgan Chase Bank’s publicly announced prime rate; (2) the Federal Funds effective rate plus 0.50%; and (3) LIBOR for a one month interest period
plus 1.00%, plus an applicable margin, may be used at our discretion. In each case, the applicable margin for advances bearing interest based on LIBOR is a percentage
determined by quotations from Markit Group Ltd. for our 1-year credit default swap spread, interpolated for a period from the date of determination of such credit default swap
spread in connection with a new interest period until the latest maturity date of this facility then in effect (but not less than a period of one year). The minimum applicable
margin rate is 0.10% and the maximum applicable margin rate is 0.75% per annum. The applicable margin for advances bearing interest based on the prime rate is 1.00% below
the applicable margin for LIBOR advances (but not less than 0.00%). We are also able to request advances under this facility based on competitive bids. There were no amounts
outstanding under this facility as of June 30, 2016.

Debt Covenants
Our existing debt instruments and credit facilities subject us to certain financial covenants. As of June 30, 2016 and for all prior periods, we have satisfied these financial

covenants. These covenants limit the amount of secured indebtedness that we may incur, and limit the amount of attributable debt in sale-leaseback transactions, to 10% of net
tangible assets. As of June 30, 2016, 10% of net tangible assets was equivalent to $2.340 billion; however, we have no covered sale-leaseback transactions or secured
indebtedness outstanding. We do not expect these covenants to have a material impact on our financial condition or liquidity.

Fair Value of Debt
Based on the borrowing rates currently available to the Company for long-term debt with similar terms and maturities, the fair value of long-term debt, including current

maturities, was approximately $16.463 and $15.524 billion as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively. We utilized Level 2 inputs in the fair value hierarchy of
valuation techniques to determine the fair value of all of our debt instruments.
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NOTE 10. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS AND CONTINGENCIES

We are involved in a number of judicial proceedings and other matters arising from the conduct of our business activities.

Although there can be no assurance as to the ultimate outcome, we have generally denied, or believe we have a meritorious defense and will deny, liability in all litigation
pending against us, including (except as otherwise noted herein) the matters described below, and we intend to defend vigorously each case. We have accrued for legal claims
when, and to the extent that, amounts associated with the claims become probable and can be reasonably estimated. The actual costs of resolving legal claims may be
substantially higher or lower than the amounts accrued for those claims.

For those matters as to which we are not able to estimate a possible loss or range of loss, we are not able to determine whether the loss will have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition or results of operations or liquidity. For matters in this category, we have indicated in the descriptions that follow the reasons that we are
unable to estimate the possible loss or range of loss.

Judicial Proceedings

We are a defendant in a number of lawsuits filed in state and federal courts containing various class action allegations under state wage-and-hour laws. At this time, we do
not believe that any loss associated with these matters would have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.

UPS and our subsidiary The UPS Store, Inc., are defendants in Morgate v. The UPS Store, Inc. et al., an action in the Los Angeles Superior Court brought on behalf of a
certified class of all franchisees who chose to rebrand their Mail Boxes Etc. franchises to The UPS Store in March 2003. Plaintiff alleges that UPS and The UPS Store, Inc.
misrepresented and omitted facts to the class about the market tests that were conducted before offering the class the choice of whether to rebrand to The UPS Store. Trial is
scheduled for mid-2017.

There are multiple factors that prevent us from being able to estimate the amount of loss, if any, that may result from the remaining aspects of this case, including: (1) we
are vigorously defending ourselves and believe we have a number of meritorious legal defenses; and (2) it remains uncertain what evidence of damages, if any, plaintiffs will be
able to present. Accordingly, at this time, we are not able to estimate a possible loss or range of loss that may result from this matter or to determine whether such loss, if any,
would have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.

In AFMS LLC v. UPS and FedEx Corporation, a lawsuit filed in federal court in the Central District of California in August 2010, the plaintiff asserts that UPS and FedEx
violated U.S. antitrust law by conspiring to refuse to negotiate with third-party negotiators retained by shippers and by individually imposing policies that prevent shippers from
using such negotiators. UPS and FedEx have moved for summary judgment. The Court granted these motions on April 30, 2015, entered judgment in favor of UPS and FedEx,
and dismissed the case. On May 21, 2015, plaintiff filed a notice of appeal to the Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Briefing is complete, and oral argument will be
scheduled. The Antitrust Division of the U.S. Department of Justice (“DOJ”) opened a civil investigation of our policies and practices for dealing with third-party negotiators.
We have cooperated with this investigation. We deny any liability with respect to these matters and intend to vigorously defend ourselves. There are multiple factors that
prevent us from being able to estimate the amount of loss, if any, that may result from these matters including: (1) the DOJ investigation is pending; (2) the Court granted our
motion for summary judgment; and (3) the appeal remains pending. Accordingly, at this time, we are not able to estimate a possible loss or range of loss that may result from
these matters or to determine whether such loss, if any, would have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.
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In Canada, four purported class-action cases were filed against us in British Columbia (2006); Ontario (2007) and Québec (2006 and 2013). The cases each allege
inadequate disclosure concerning the existence and cost of brokerage services provided by us under applicable provincial consumer protection legislation and infringement of
interest restriction provisions under the Criminal Code of Canada. The British Columbia class action was declared inappropriate for certification and dismissed by the trial judge.
That decision was upheld by the British Columbia Court of Appeal in March 2010, which ended the case in our favor. The Ontario class action was certified in September 2011.
Partial summary judgment was granted to us and the plaintiffs by the Ontario motions court. The complaint under the Criminal Code was dismissed. No appeal is being taken
from that decision. The allegations of inadequate disclosure were granted and we are appealing that decision. The motion to authorize the 2006 Québec litigation as a class
action was dismissed by the motions judge in October 2012; there was no appeal, which ended that case in our favor. The 2013 Québec litigation also has been dismissed. We
deny all liability and are vigorously defending the one outstanding case in Ontario. There are multiple factors that prevent us from being able to estimate the amount of loss, if
any, that may result from this matter, including: (1) we are vigorously defending ourselves and believe that we have a number of meritorious legal defenses; and (2) there are
unresolved questions of law and fact that could be important to the ultimate resolution of this matter. Accordingly, at this time, we are not able to estimate a possible loss or
range of loss that may result from this matter or to determine whether such loss, if any, would have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations or
liquidity.

Other Matters
In August 2010, competition authorities in Brazil opened an administrative proceeding to investigate alleged anticompetitive behavior in the freight forwarding industry.

Approximately 45 freight forwarding companies and individuals are named in the proceeding, including UPS, UPS SCS Transportes (Brasil) S.A., and a former employee in
Brazil. UPS submitted its written defenses to these allegations in April 2014. We are cooperating with this investigation, and intend to continue to vigorously defend ourselves.
There are multiple factors that prevent us from being able to estimate the amount of loss, if any, that may result from this matter including: (1) we are vigorously defending the
matter and believe that we have a number of meritorious legal defenses; (2) there are unresolved questions of law that could be of importance to the ultimate resolutions of this
matter, including the calculation of any potential fine; and (3) there is uncertainty about the time period that is the subject of the investigation. Accordingly, at this time, we are
not able to estimate a possible loss or range of loss that may result from this matter or to determine whether such loss, if any, would have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.

In February 2015, the State and City of New York filed suit against UPS in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of New York, arising from alleged shipments
of cigarettes to New York State and City residents. The complaint asserts claims under various federal and state laws.  The complaint also includes a claim that UPS violated
the Assurance of Discontinuance it entered into with the New York Attorney General in 2005 concerning cigarette deliveries. The pre-trial process is ongoing and trial is
scheduled for September, 2016. There are multiple factors that prevent us from being able to estimate the amount of loss, if any, that may result from this case, including: (1)
we are vigorously defending ourselves and believe we have a number of meritorious factual and legal defenses; and (2) it remains uncertain what evidence of their claims and
damages, if any, plaintiffs will be able to present. Accordingly, at this time, we are not able to estimate a possible loss or range of loss that may result from this matter or to
determine whether such loss, if any, would have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.

On May 2, 2016, a purported shareowner derivative suit was filed in the Delaware Court of Chancery naming certain of UPS’s current and former officers and directors as
defendants, alleging that they breached their fiduciary duties by failing to monitor UPS’s compliance with the Assurance of Discontinuance and other federal and state laws
relating to cigarette deliveries. The Company and the individual defendants have filed a motion to dismiss.

We are a defendant in various other lawsuits that arose in the normal course of business. We do not believe that the eventual resolution of these other lawsuits (either
individually or in the aggregate), including any reasonably possible losses in excess of current accruals, will have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of
operations or liquidity.
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NOTE 11. SHAREOWNERS' EQUITY
Capital Stock, Additional Paid-In Capital and Retained Earnings

We maintain two classes of common stock, which are distinguished from each other primarily by their respective voting rights. Class A shares are entitled to 10 votes per
share, whereas class B shares are entitled to one vote per share. Class A shares are primarily held by UPS employees and retirees, and these shares are fully convertible on a
one-to-one basis into class B shares at any time. Class B shares are publicly traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “UPS”. Class A and B shares both have
a $0.01 par value, and as of June 30, 2016, there were 4.6 billion class A shares and 5.6 billion class B shares authorized to be issued. Additionally, there are 200 million
preferred shares, with a $0.01 par value, authorized to be issued. As of June 30, 2016, no preferred shares had been issued.
 

The following is a rollforward of our common stock, additional paid-in capital and retained earnings accounts for the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 (in
millions, except per share amounts):

 2016  2015

 Shares  Dollars  Shares  Dollars

Class A Common Stock        
Balance at beginning of period 194  2  201  $ 2
Common stock purchases (3)  —  (2)  —
Stock award plans 4  —  4  —
Common stock issuances 2  —  1  —
Conversions of class A to class B common stock (8)  —  (5)  —
Class A shares issued at end of period 189  2  199  $ 2

Class B Common Stock        
Balance at beginning of period 693  $ 7  705  $ 7
Common stock purchases (10)  —  (12)  —
Conversions of class A to class B common stock 8  —  5  —
Class B shares issued at end of period 691  7  698  $ 7

Additional Paid-In Capital        
Balance at beginning of period   $ —    $ —
Stock award plans   289    265
Common stock purchases   (561)    (392)
Common stock issuances   168    173
Option premiums received (paid)   104    (46)
Balance at end of period

  $ —    $ —
Retained Earnings        

Balance at beginning of period   $ 6,001    $ 5,726
Net income attributable to common shareowners   2,400    2,256
Dividends ($1.56 and $1.46 per share)   (1,409)    (1,348)
Common stock purchases   (769)    (966)
Balance at end of period   $ 6,223    $ 5,668

We repurchased 13.1 million shares of class A and class B common stock for $1.330 billion during the six months ended June 30, 2016, and 13.5 million shares for
$1.358 billion during the six months ended June 30, 2015. During the first quarter of 2016, we also exercised a capped call option that we entered into in 2015 for which we
received 0.2 million UPS class B shares. The $25 million premium payment for this capped call option reduced shareowners' equity in 2015. In total, shares repurchased and
received in the six months ended June 30, 2016 were 13.3 million shares for $1.355 billion. In May 2016, the Board of Directors approved a share repurchase authorization of
$8.0 billion, which has no expiration date. As of June 30, 2016, we had $7.505 billion of this share repurchase authorization available.
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From time to time, we enter into share repurchase programs with large financial institutions to assist in our buyback of company stock. These programs allow us to
repurchase our shares at a price below the weighted average UPS share price for a given period. During the second quarter of 2016, we entered into an accelerated share
repurchase program which allowed us to repurchase 2.9 million shares for $300 million. The program was completed in June 2016.

In order to lower the average cost of acquiring shares in our ongoing share repurchase program, we periodically enter into structured repurchase agreements involving the
use of capped call options for the purchase of UPS class B shares. We pay a fixed sum of cash upon execution of each agreement in exchange for the right to receive either a pre-
determined amount of cash or stock. Upon expiration of each agreement, if the closing market price of our common stock is above the pre-determined price, we will have our
initial investment returned with a premium in either cash or shares (at our election). If the closing market price of our common stock is at or below the pre-determined price, we
will receive the number of shares specified in the agreement. We received (paid) net premiums of $104 and $(46) million during the first six months of 2016 and 2015,
respectively, related to entering into and settling capped call options for the purchase of class B shares. As of June 30, 2016, we had outstanding options for the purchase of 0.5
million shares with a weighted average strike price of $92.98 per share that will settle in the third quarter of 2016.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
We experience activity in AOCI for unrealized holding gains and losses on available-for-sale securities, foreign currency translation adjustments, unrealized gains and

losses from derivatives that qualify as hedges of cash flows and unrecognized pension and postretirement benefit costs. The activity in AOCI for the six months ended June 30,
2016 and 2015 is as follows (in millions):

 2016  2015

Foreign currency translation gain (loss):    
Balance at beginning of period $ (897)  $ (457)
Translation adjustment (no tax impact in either period) (5 )  (203 )
Balance at end of period (902 )  (660 )

Unrealized gain (loss) on marketable securities, net of tax:    
Balance at beginning of period (1 )  —
Current period changes in fair value (net of tax effect of $4 and $0) 5  1
Reclassification to earnings (no tax impact in either period) —  —
Balance at end of period 4  1

Unrealized gain (loss) on cash flow hedges, net of tax:    
Balance at beginning of period 67  61
Current period changes in fair value (net of tax effect of $(5) and $56) (7 )  91
Reclassification to earnings (net of tax effect of $(67) and $(45)) (112 )  (74 )
Balance at end of period (52 )  78

Unrecognized pension and postretirement benefit costs, net of tax:    
Balance at beginning of period (2,709 )  (3,198 )
Reclassification to earnings (net of tax effect of $33 and $35) 53  52
Balance at end of period (2,656 )  (3,146 )

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at end of period $ (3,606)  $ (3,727)
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Detail of the gains (losses) reclassified from AOCI to the statements of consolidated income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 is as follows (in
millions):

Three Months Ended June 30:      
 Amount Reclassified from AOCI  

Affected Line Item in the Income Statement 2016  2015  
Unrealized gain (loss) on cash flow hedges:      

Interest rate contracts $ (6)  $ (6)  Interest expense
Foreign exchange contracts —  11  Interest expense
Foreign exchange contracts 85  77  Revenue
Income tax (expense) benefit (29)  (31)  Income tax expense
Impact on net income 50  51  Net income

Unrecognized pension and postretirement benefit costs:      
Prior service costs (43)  (44)  Compensation and benefits
Income tax (expense) benefit 16  18  Income tax expense
Impact on net income (27)  (26)  Net income

Total amount reclassified for the period $ 23  $ 25  Net income

Six Months Ended June 30:      
 Amount Reclassified from AOCI  Affected Line Item in the Income

Statement 2016  2015  
Unrealized gain (loss) on cash flow hedges:      

Interest rate contracts (12)  (12)  Interest expense
Foreign exchange contracts —  (25)  Interest expense
Foreign exchange contracts 191  156  Revenue
Income tax (expense) benefit (67)  (45)  Income tax expense
Impact on net income 112  74  Net income

Unrecognized pension and postretirement benefit costs:      
Prior service costs (86)  (87)  Compensation and benefits
Income tax (expense) benefit 33  35  Income tax expense
Impact on net income (53)  (52)  Net income

Total amount reclassified for the period $ 59  $ 22  Net income
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Deferred Compensation Obligations and Treasury Stock
Activity in the deferred compensation program for the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 is as follows (in millions):

 

2016  2015

Shares  Dollars  Shares  Dollars

Deferred Compensation Obligations:        
Balance at beginning of period   $ 51    $ 59
Reinvested dividends   1    2
Benefit payments   (8 )    (11 )
Balance at end of period   $ 44    $ 50

Treasury Stock:        
Balance at beginning of period (1 )  $ (51)  (1 )  $ (59)
Reinvested dividends —  (1 )  —  (2 )
Benefit payments —  8  —  11
Balance at end of period (1 )  $ (44)  (1 )  $ (50)

Noncontrolling Interests:
We have noncontrolling interests in certain consolidated subsidiaries in our International Package and Supply Chain & Freight segments. Noncontrolling interests

increased $3 and $1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
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NOTE 12. SEGMENT INFORMATION
We report our operations in three segments: U.S. Domestic Package operations, International Package operations and Supply Chain & Freight operations. Package

operations represent our most significant business and are broken down into regional operations around the world. Regional operations managers are responsible for both
domestic and export operations within their geographic area.

U.S. Domestic Package
Domestic Package operations include the time-definite delivery of letters, documents and packages throughout the United States.

International Package
International Package operations include delivery to more than 220 countries and territories worldwide, including shipments wholly outside the United States, as well as

U.S. export and U.S. import shipments. Our International Package reporting segment includes the operations of our Europe, Asia, Americas and ISMEA (Indian Subcontinent,
Middle East and Africa) operating segments.

Supply Chain & Freight
Supply Chain & Freight includes the operations of our forwarding, logistics, Coyote, UPS Freight and other aggregated business units. Our forwarding, logistics and

Coyote units provide services in more than 195 countries and territories worldwide, and include North American and international air and ocean freight forwarding, customs
brokerage, truckload freight brokerage, distribution and post-sales services and mail and consulting services. UPS Freight offers a variety of less-than-truckload (“LTL”) and
truckload (“TL”) services to customers in North America. Other aggregated business units within this segment include The UPS Store and UPS Capital.

In evaluating financial performance, we focus on operating profit as a segment’s measure of profit or loss. Operating profit is before investment income, interest expense
and income taxes. The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as those described in the summary of accounting policies included in the consolidated
financial statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015, with certain expenses allocated between the segments using activity-based
costing methods.

Segment information for the three and six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 is as follows (in millions):

 
Three Months Ended

June 30,  
Six Months Ended

June 30,

 2016  2015  2016  2015

Revenue:        
U.S. Domestic Package $ 9,015  $ 8,808  $ 18,099  $ 17,622
International Package 3,077  3,045  5,991  6,015
Supply Chain & Freight 2,537  2,242  4,957  4,435

Consolidated $ 14,629  $ 14,095  $ 29,047  $ 28,072
Operating Profit:        

U.S. Domestic Package $ 1,233  $ 1,201  $ 2,335  $ 2,225
International Package 613  552  1,187  1,050
Supply Chain & Freight 192  207  339  358

Consolidated $ 2,038  $ 1,960  $ 3,861  $ 3,633
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NOTE 13. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share for the three and six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 (in millions, except per

share amounts):

 

Three Months Ended
June 30,  

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2016  2015  2016  2015

Numerator:        
Net income attributable to common shareowners $ 1,269  $ 1,230  $ 2,400  $ 2,256

Denominator:        
Weighted average shares 881  899  883  901
Deferred compensation obligations 1  1  1  1
Vested portion of restricted units 4  1  3  1

Denominator for basic earnings per share 886  901  887  903
Effect of dilutive securities:        

Restricted units 3  6  4  7
Stock options 1  1  1  1

Denominator for diluted earnings per share 890  908  892  911
Basic earnings per share $ 1.43  $ 1.37  $ 2.71  $ 2.50
Diluted earnings per share $ 1.43  $ 1.35  $ 2.69  $ 2.48

Diluted earnings per share for the three months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 excluded the effect of 0.2 and 0.2 million shares of common stock, respectively (0.3 and 0.2
million for the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively) that may be issued upon the exercise of employee stock options, because such effect would be
antidilutive.
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NOTE 14. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk Management Policies

We are exposed to market risk, primarily related to foreign exchange rates, commodity prices and interest rates. These exposures are actively monitored by management.
To manage the volatility relating to certain of these exposures, we enter into a variety of derivative financial instruments. Our objective is to reduce, where it is deemed
appropriate to do so, fluctuations in earnings and cash flows associated with changes in foreign currency rates, commodity prices and interest rates. It is our policy and practice
to use derivative financial instruments only to the extent necessary to manage exposures. As we use price sensitive instruments to hedge a certain portion of our existing and
anticipated transactions, we expect that any loss in value for those instruments generally would be offset by increases in the value of those hedged transactions. We do not hold
or issue derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

Credit Risk Management
The forward contracts, swaps and options discussed below contain an element of risk that the counterparties may be unable to meet the terms of the agreements; however,

we minimize such risk exposures for these instruments by limiting the counterparties to banks and financial institutions that meet established credit guidelines, and by
monitoring counterparty credit risk to prevent concentrations of credit risk with any single counterparty.

 We have agreements with all of our active counterparties (covering the majority of our derivative positions) containing early termination rights and/or zero threshold
bilateral collateral provisions whereby cash is required based on the net fair value of derivatives associated with those counterparties. Events such as a counterparty credit rating
downgrade (depending on the ultimate rating level) could also allow us to take additional protective measures such as the early termination of trades. At June 30, 2016 and
December 31, 2015, we held cash collateral of $582 and $717 million, respectively, under these agreements; this collateral is included in "cash and cash equivalents" on the
consolidated balance sheets and its use by UPS is not restricted.

In connection with the zero threshold bilateral collateral provisions described above, we were not required to post any collateral with our counterparties as of June 30,
2016 and December 31, 2015. As of those dates, there were no instruments in a net liability position that were not covered by the zero threshold bilateral collateral provisions.
Additionally, in connection with the agreements described above, we could be required to terminate transactions with certain counterparties in the event of a downgrade of our
credit rating.

We have not historically incurred, and do not expect to incur in the future, any losses as a result of counterparty default.

Accounting Policy for Derivative Instruments
We recognize all derivative instruments as assets or liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets at fair value. The accounting for changes in the fair value of a derivative

instrument depends on whether it has been designated and qualifies as part of a hedging relationship and, further, on the type of hedging relationship. For those derivative
instruments that are designated and qualify as hedging instruments, a company must designate the derivative, based upon the exposure being hedged, as a cash flow hedge, a fair
value hedge or a hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation.

A cash flow hedge refers to hedging the exposure to variability in expected future cash flows that is attributable to a particular risk. For derivative instruments that are
designated and qualify as a cash flow hedge, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative instrument is reported as a component of AOCI, and reclassified into
earnings in the same period during which the hedged transaction affects earnings. The remaining gain or loss on the derivative instrument in excess of the cumulative change in
the present value of future cash flows of the hedged item, or hedge components excluded from the assessment of effectiveness, are recognized in the statements of consolidated
income during the current period.

A fair value hedge refers to hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of an existing asset or liability on the consolidated balance sheets that is attributable to a
particular risk. For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as a fair value hedge, the gain or loss on the derivative instrument is recognized in the statements of
consolidated income during the current period, as well as the offsetting gain or loss on the hedged item.

A net investment hedge refers to the use of cross currency swaps, forward contracts or foreign currency denominated debt to hedge portions of our net investments in
foreign operations. For hedges that meet the effectiveness requirements, the net gains or losses attributable to changes in spot exchange rates are recorded in the foreign
currency translation adjustment within AOCI. The remainder of the change in value of such instruments is recorded in earnings.
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Types of Hedges
Commodity Risk Management

Currently, the fuel surcharges that we apply to our domestic and international package and LTL services are the primary means of reducing the risk of adverse fuel price
changes on our business. We periodically enter into option contracts on energy commodity products to manage the price risk associated with forecasted transactions involving
refined fuels, principally jet-A, diesel and unleaded gasoline. The objective of the hedges is to reduce the variability of cash flows, due to changing fuel prices, associated with
the forecasted transactions involving those products. We normally designate and account for these contracts as cash flow hedges of the underlying forecasted transactions
involving these fuel products and, therefore, the resulting gains and losses from these hedges are recognized as a component of fuel expense or revenue when the underlying
transactions occur.

Foreign Currency Risk Management
To protect against the reduction in value of forecasted foreign currency cash flows from our international package business, we maintain a foreign currency cash flow

hedging program. Our most significant foreign currency exposures relate to the Euro, British Pound Sterling, Canadian Dollar, Chinese Renminbi and Hong Kong Dollar. We
hedge portions of our forecasted revenue denominated in foreign currencies with option and forward contracts. We normally designate and account for these contracts as cash
flow hedges of anticipated foreign currency denominated revenue and, therefore, the resulting gains and losses from these hedges are recognized as a component of international
package revenue when the underlying sales transactions occur.

We also hedge portions of our anticipated cash settlements of intercompany transactions and interest payments on certain debt subject to foreign currency remeasurement
using foreign currency forward contracts. We normally designate and account for these contracts as cash flow hedges of forecasted foreign currency denominated transactions;
therefore, the resulting gains and losses from these hedges are recognized as a component of investment income and other when the underlying transactions are subject to
currency remeasurement.

We hedge our net investment in certain foreign operations with foreign currency denominated debt instruments. The use of foreign denominated debt as the hedging
instrument allows the debt to be remeasured to foreign currency translation adjustment within AOCI to offset the translation risk from those investments. Any ineffective
portion of net investment hedging is recognized as a component of investment income and other. Balances in the cumulative translation adjustment accounts remain until the
sale or complete liquidation of the foreign entity.

Interest Rate Risk Management
Our indebtedness under our various financing arrangements creates interest rate risk. We use a combination of derivative instruments as part of our program to manage the

fixed and floating interest rate mix of our total debt portfolio and related overall cost of borrowing. The notional amount, interest payment date and maturity date of the swaps
match the terms of the associated debt being hedged. Interest rate swaps allow us to maintain a target range of floating rate debt within our capital structure.

We have designated and account for the majority of our interest rate swaps that convert fixed rate interest payments into floating rate interest payments as hedges of the
fair value of the associated debt instruments. Therefore, the gains and losses resulting from fair value adjustments to the interest rate swaps and fair value adjustments to the
associated debt instruments are recorded to interest expense in the period in which the gains and losses occur. We normally designate and account for interest rate swaps that
convert floating rate interest payments into fixed rate interest payments as cash flow hedges of the forecasted payment obligations.

We periodically hedge the forecasted fixed-coupon interest payments associated with anticipated debt offerings, using forward starting interest rate swaps, interest rate
locks or similar derivatives. These agreements effectively lock a portion of our interest rate exposure between the time the agreement is entered into and the date when the debt
offering is completed, thereby mitigating the impact of interest rate changes on future interest expense. These derivatives are settled commensurate with the issuance of the debt,
and any gain or loss upon settlement is amortized as an adjustment to the effective interest yield on the debt.
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Outstanding Positions
As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the notional amounts of our outstanding derivative positions were as follows (in millions):

 June 30, 2016  December 31, 2015

Currency hedges:      
British Pound Sterling GBP 983  GBP 1,140
Canadian Dollar CAD 919  CAD 177
Euro EUR 3,492  EUR 3,750
Indian Rupee INR 284  INR —
Mexican Peso MXN 117  MXN 3,863
Japanese Yen JPY 8,200  JPY 20,000
      

Interest rate hedges:      
Fixed to Floating Interest Rate Swaps $ 5,799  $ 5,799
Floating to Fixed Interest Rate Swaps $ 778  $ 778
      

Investment market price hedges:      
Marketable Securities EUR 465  EUR 496

As of June 30, 2016, we had no outstanding commodity hedge positions.

Balance Sheet Recognition and Fair Value Measurements
The following table indicates the location on the consolidated balance sheets in which our derivative assets and liabilities have been recognized, the fair value hierarchy

level applicable to each derivative type and the related fair values of those derivatives (in millions). The table is segregated between those derivative instruments that qualify
and are designated as hedging instruments and those that are not, as well as by type of contract and whether the derivative is in an asset or liability position.

We have master netting arrangements with substantially all of our counterparties giving us the right of offset for our derivative positions. However, we have not elected to
offset the fair value positions of our derivative contracts recorded on our consolidated balance sheets. The columns labeled "Net Amounts if Right of Offset had been Applied"
indicate the potential net fair value positions by type of contract and location on the consolidated balance sheets had we elected to apply the right of offset.

   Fair Value
Hierarchy

Level

 
Gross Amounts Presented in
Consolidated Balance Sheets  

Net Amounts if Right of
Offset had been Applied

Asset Derivatives Balance Sheet Location   
June 30, 

2016  
December 31, 

2015  
June 30, 

2016  
December 31, 

2015
Derivatives designated as hedges:            
Foreign exchange contracts Other current assets  Level 2  $ 245  $ 408  $ 244  $ 408
Foreign exchange contracts Other non-current assets  Level 2  71  92  66  92
Interest rate contracts Other non-current assets  Level 2  312  204  297  185
Derivatives not designated as hedges:            
Foreign exchange contracts Other current assets  Level 2  1  2  —  —
Investment market price contracts Other current assets  Level 2  181  5  181  —
Interest rate contracts Other non-current assets  Level 2  78  57  68  53

Total Asset Derivatives     $ 888  $ 768  $ 856  $ 738
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   Fair Value
Hierarchy

Level

 
Gross Amounts Presented in
Consolidated Balance Sheets  

Net Amounts if Right of
Offset had been Applied

Liability Derivatives Balance Sheet Location   
June 30, 

2016  
December 31, 

2015  
June 30, 

2016  
December 31, 

2015
Derivatives designated as hedges:            
Foreign exchange contracts Other current liabilities  Level 2  $ 4  $ —  $ 2  $ —
Foreign exchange contracts Other non-current liabilities  Level 2  13  —  9  —
Interest rate contracts Other non-current liabilities  Level 2  15  19  —  —
Derivatives not designated as hedges:            
Foreign exchange contracts Other current liabilities  Level 2  15  12  14  10
Investment market price contracts Other current liabilities  Level 2  —  9  —  4
Interest rate contracts Other non-current liabilities  Level 2  38  13  28  9

Total Liability Derivatives     $ 85  $ 53  $ 53  $ 23

Our foreign currency, interest rate and investment market price derivatives are largely comprised of over-the-counter derivatives, which are primarily valued using pricing
models that rely on market observable inputs such as yield curves, currency exchange rates and investment forward prices; therefore, these derivatives are classified as Level 2.

Income Statement and AOCI Recognition
The following table indicates the amount of gains and losses that have been recognized in AOCI for the three and six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 for those

derivatives designated as cash flow hedges (in millions):

Three Months Ended June 30:     

Derivative Instruments in Cash Flow Hedging Relationships

 
Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized in AOCI on Derivative

(Effective Portion)

 June 30, 2016  2015

Interest rate contracts  (1 )  $ 1
Foreign exchange contracts  149  (173 )
Total  $ 148  $ (172 )

     

Six Months Ended June 30:     

Derivative Instruments in Cash Flow Hedging Relationships

 
Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized in AOCI on Derivative

(Effective Portion)

 2016  2015

Interest rate contracts  $ (3 )  $ —
Foreign exchange contracts  (9 )  147

Total  $ (12 )  $ 147

As of June 30, 2016, $179 million of pre-tax gains related to cash flow hedges that are currently deferred in AOCI are expected to be reclassified to income over the 12
month period ended June 30, 2017. The actual amounts that will be reclassified to income over the next 12 months will vary from this amount as a result of changes in market
conditions. The maximum term over which we are hedging exposures to the variability of cash flow is 16 years.

The amount of ineffectiveness recognized in income on derivative instruments designated in cash flow hedging relationships was immaterial for the three and six months
ended June 30, 2016 and 2015.
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The following table indicates the amount of gains and losses that have been recognized in AOCI within foreign currency translation adjustment for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 for those instruments designated as net investment hedges (in millions):

Three Months Ended June 30:     

Non-derivative Instruments in Net Investment Hedging Relationships

 
Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized in AOCI on Debt

(Effective Portion)

 2016  2015

Foreign denominated debt  $ 62  $ —
Total  $ 62  $ —

     

Six Months Ended June 30:     

Non-derivative Instruments in Net Investment Hedging Relationships

 
Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized in AOCI on Debt

(Effective Portion)

 2016  2015

Foreign denominated debt  $ (23 )  —
Total  $ (23 )  $ —

The amount of ineffectiveness recognized in income on non-derivative instruments designated in net investment hedging relationships was immaterial for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015.

The following table indicates the amount and location in the statements of consolidated income in which derivative gains and losses, as well as the associated gains and
losses on the underlying exposure, have been recognized for those derivatives designated as fair value hedges for the three and six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 (in
millions):

Derivative Instruments
in Fair Value
Hedging Relationships

Location of
Gain (Loss)

Recognized in
Income

 
Derivative Amount of Gain (Loss)

Recognized in Income  
Hedged Items in

Fair Value
Hedging

Relationships

 
Location of 
Gain (Loss)

Recognized In
 Income

 
Hedged Items Amount of Gain (Loss)

Recognized in Income

 2016  2015    2016  2015

Three Months Ended June 30:        
Interest rate contracts Interest Expense

 
$ 20

 
$ (64)

 
Fixed-Rate

Debt  
Interest
Expense  

$ (20)
 

$ 64

Six Months Ended June 30:           
Interest rate contracts Interest

Expense
 

$ 115

 

$ (9)

 

Fixed-Rate
Debt and

Capital Leases  

Interest
Expense

 

$ (115)

 

$ 9

Additionally, we maintain some interest rate swaps, foreign currency forwards and investment market price forward contracts that are not designated as hedges. These
interest rate swap contracts are intended to provide an economic hedge of a portfolio of interest bearing receivables. These foreign exchange forward contracts are intended to
provide an economic offset to foreign currency remeasurement and settlement risk for certain assets and liabilities on our consolidated balance sheets. These investment market
price forward contracts are intended to provide an economic offset to fair value fluctuations of certain investments in marketable securities.

We also periodically terminate interest rate swaps and foreign currency options by entering into offsetting swap and foreign currency positions with different
counterparties. As part of this process, we de-designate our original swap and foreign currency contracts. These transactions provide an economic offset that effectively
eliminates the effects of changes in market valuation.
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The following is a summary of the amounts recorded in the statements of consolidated income related to fair value changes and settlements of these interest rate swaps,
foreign currency forward and investment market price forward contracts not designated as hedges for the three and six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 (in millions):

Derivative Instruments Not Designated in
Hedging Relationships

Location of Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Income

 
Amount of Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Income

 2016  2015

Three Months Ended June 30:      
Interest rate contracts Interest expense  $ (2 )  $ (2 )
Foreign exchange contracts Other Operating Expenses  —  (5 )
Foreign exchange contracts Investment income and other  (65 )  33
Foreign exchange contracts Interest expense  —  36
Investment market price contracts Investment income and other  25  (7 )
   $ (42 )  $ 55

Six Months Ended June 30:      
Interest rate contracts Interest expense  $ (4 )  $ (3 )
Foreign exchange contracts Other Operating Expenses  —  16
Foreign exchange contracts Investment income and other  (106 )  35
Foreign exchange contracts Interest expense  —  36
Investment market price contracts Investment income and other  180  (9 )
   $ 70  $ 75
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NOTE 15. INCOME TAXES
Our effective tax rate increased to 35.0% in the second quarter of 2016 from 34.5% in the same period of 2015 (35.1% year-to-date in 2016 compared to 34.9% in the same

period of 2015), primarily due to a decrease in U.S. Federal and state tax credits relative to total pre-tax income. This was offset by favorable changes in the proportion of our
taxable income in certain U.S. and non-U.S. jurisdictions

As discussed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015, we have recognized liabilities for uncertain tax positions. We reevaluate these
uncertain tax positions on a quarterly basis. A number of years may elapse before an uncertain tax position is audited and ultimately settled. It is difficult to predict the ultimate
outcome or the timing of resolution for uncertain tax positions. It is reasonably possible that the amount of unrecognized tax benefits could significantly increase or decrease
within the next twelve months. However, an estimate of the range of reasonably possible outcomes cannot be made. Items that may cause changes to unrecognized tax benefits
include various state filing positions, the allocation of income and expense between tax jurisdictions and other transfer pricing matters. These changes could result from the
settlement of ongoing litigation, the completion of ongoing examinations, the expiration of the statute of limitations or other unforeseen circumstances.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations

 
Overview

The U.S. economic environment has continued to be mixed as relatively stable consumer conditions are somewhat offset by continued declines in industrial production,
soft business investment and higher inventory levels.  We continue to see modest GDP growth and U.S. manufacturing has shown some positive signs of growth in recent
months, but remains weak overall and continues to hinder the pace of expansion in the overall small package delivery market. Low inflation and low fuel prices continued in the
economy, giving consumers more purchasing power. Continued growth in e-commerce and omni-channel retail sales has driven package volume demand for residential
products. Given these trends, overall volume grew moderately during the second quarter and first half of 2016, with those products mostly aligned with the retail and e-
commerce experiencing the most growth.

Outside of the U.S., emerging markets have stabilized in recent months and most developed nations have seen modest growth. The recent decision by the United
Kingdom to leave the European Union creates some uncertainty on its impact to global GDP. The uneven nature of economic growth worldwide and volatile currency markets
have continued shifting trade patterns and weakened demand in certain trade lanes. As a result of these circumstances, we continued to adjust our air capacity and cost structure
in our transportation network to better match the prevailing volume levels. Our broad portfolio of product offerings and the flexibilities inherent in our transportation network
have helped us adapt to these changing trends.

While the worldwide economic environment has remained challenging in 2016, we have continued to undertake several initiatives in the U.S. and internationally to (1)
improve the flexibility and capacity in our transportation network; (2) improve yield management; and (3) increase operational efficiency and contain costs across all segments.
Most notably, the continued deployment of technology improvements (including several facility automation projects and the accelerated deployment of our On Road Integrated
Optimization and Navigation system - "ORION") should continue to increase our network capacity and improve operational efficiency, flexibility and reliability. Additionally,
we have continued to utilize newly expanded operating facilities to improve time-in-transit for shipments in each region.

Our consolidated results are presented in the table below:

 
Three Months Ended

June 30,  Change  
Six Months Ended

June 30,  Change

 2016  2015  %  2016  2015  %

Revenue (in millions) $ 14,629  $ 14,095  3.8 %  $ 29,047  $ 28,072  3.5 %
Operating Expenses (in millions) 12,591  12,135  3.8 %  25,186  24,439  3.1 %
Operating Profit (in millions) $ 2,038  $ 1,960  4.0 %  $ 3,861  $ 3,633  6.3 %
Operating Margin 13.9%  13.9%    13.3%  12.9%   
Average Daily Package Volume (in thousands) 17,687  17,210  2.8 %  17,761  17,338  2.4 %
Average Revenue Per Piece $ 10.57  $ 10.61  (0.4 )%  $ 10.48  $ 10.59  (1.0 )%
Net Income (in millions) $ 1,269  $ 1,230  3.2 %  $ 2,400  $ 2,256  6.4 %
Basic Earnings Per Share $ 1.43  $ 1.37  4.4 %  $ 2.71  $ 2.50  8.4 %
Diluted Earnings Per Share $ 1.43  $ 1.35  5.9 %  $ 2.69  $ 2.48  8.5 %
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Results of Operations—Segment Review
The results and discussions that follow are reflective of how our executive management monitors the performance of our reporting segments. From time to time, we

supplement the reporting of our financial information determined under generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) with certain non-GAAP financial measures,
including, as applicable, "adjusted" operating profit, operating margin, income before income taxes, effective tax rate, net income and earnings per share adjusted for the non-
comparable items. We believe that these adjusted measures provide meaningful information to assist investors and analysts in understanding our financial results and assessing
our prospects for future performance. We believe these adjusted financial measures are important indicators of our results of operations because they exclude items that may not
be indicative of, or are unrelated to, our core operating results and provide a better baseline for analyzing trends in our underlying businesses.

Certain operating expenses are allocated between our reporting segments based on activity-based costing methods. These activity-based costing methods require us to
make estimates that impact the amount of each expense category that is attributed to each segment. Changes in these estimates will directly impact the amount of expense
allocated to each segment and therefore the operating profit of each reporting segment. There were no significant changes in our expense allocation methodologies during 2016
or 2015.
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U.S. Domestic Package Operations

 

Three Months Ended
June 30,  Change  

Six Months Ended
June 30,  Change

2016  2015  %  2016  2015  %

Average Daily Package Volume (in thousands):            
Next Day Air 1,311  1,241  5.6 %  1,289  1,235  4.4 %
Deferred 1,129  1,132  (0.3 )%  1,163  1,175  (1.0 )%
Ground 12,489  12,192  2.4 %  12,606  12,255  2.9 %

Total Avg. Daily Package Volume 14,929  14,565  2.5 %  15,058  14,665  2.7 %
Average Revenue Per Piece:            

Next Day Air $ 19.51  $ 20.03  (2.6 )%  $ 19.47  $ 20.07  (3.0 )%
Deferred 12.44  12.12  2.6 %  12.19  11.89  2.5 %
Ground 8.11  8.12  (0.1 )%  8.10  8.16  (0.7 )%

Total Avg. Revenue Per Piece $ 9.44  $ 9.45  (0.1 )%  $ 9.39  $ 9.46  (0.7 )%
Operating Days in Period 64  64    128  127   
Revenue (in millions):            

Next Day Air $ 1,637  $ 1,591  2.9 %  $ 3,212  $ 3,148  2.0 %
Deferred 899  878  2.4 %  1,814  1,774  2.3 %
Ground 6,479  6,339  2.2 %  13,073  12,700  2.9 %

Total Revenue $ 9,015  $ 8,808  2.4 %  $ 18,099  $ 17,622  2.7 %
Operating Expenses (in millions) $ 7,782  $ 7,607  2.3 %  $ 15,764  $ 15,397  2.4 %
Operating Profit (in millions) $ 1,233  $ 1,201  2.7 %  $ 2,335  $ 2,225  4.9 %
Operating Margin 13.7%  13.6%    12.9%  12.6%   

Revenue
The change in overall revenue was impacted by the following factors in 2016 compared with the corresponding period of 2015:

 Volume  
Rates /

Product Mix  
Fuel

Surcharge  
Total Revenue

Change

Net Revenue Change Drivers:        
Second quarter 2016 vs. 2015 2.5%  1.0 %  (1.1 )%  2.4 %
Year-to-date 2016 vs. 2015 3.5%  0.3 %  (1.1 )%  2.7 %

Volume
Our total volume increased in the second quarter and year-to-date periods of 2016 compared with 2015, primarily due to continued growth in the e-commerce, healthcare

and automotive segments as well as one additional operating day for the year-to-date period. Business-to-consumer shipments, which represent approximately 45% of total U.S.
Domestic Package volume, grew more than 5% for the second quarter of 2016 due to increases in both air and ground shipments led by UPS SurePost. Business-to-business
shipments increased slightly driven by retail industry return services.

Among our air products, volume increased for Next Day Air services in the second quarter and year-to-date periods of 2016, particularly for those products most aligned
with business-to-consumer shipping as more online retailers are providing faster delivery options. Deferred air product volume decreased slightly in the second quarter and year-
to-date periods of 2016, due to product and customer mix.

The increase in ground volume in the second quarter and year-to-date periods of 2016 was driven primarily by business-to-consumer, but also business-to-business
shipping activity. The continued growth was fueled by e-commerce, which resulted in increased use of our returns and SurePost services.
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Rates and Product Mix
Overall revenue per piece was relatively flat for the second quarter of 2016, but decreased 0.7% year-to-date compared with the same period of 2015 primarily due to

lower fuel surcharge rates as well as changes in customer and product mix. These factors were partially offset by the implementation of several rate and accessorial charge
increases (as described below).

Revenue per piece for ground and air products was positively impacted by a base rate increase on December 28, 2015. UPS Ground rates and accessorial charges
increased an average net 4.9%, while UPS Air services and accessorial charges increased an average net 5.2%. The surcharge increased for Over Maximum Packages and the
index tables for the Ground and Air fuel surcharges were adjusted effective November 2, 2015. A charge for UPS’s Third-Party Billing Service was implemented, effective
January 4, 2016. Additionally, the dimensions of ground packages incurring the UPS Additional Handling charge were changed effective June 6, 2016.

Revenue per piece for deferred products increased in the second quarter and year-to-date periods of 2016, while Next Day Air declined. All products were negatively
impacted by lower fuel surcharge rates. The Next Day Air revenue per piece decline was caused by a shift in customer and product mix. We experienced relatively stronger
growth in our lighter-weight business-to-consumer shipments particularly our Next Day Air Saver product, which have lower average yields than our heavier-weight
commercial shipments. Deferred revenue per piece increased primarily due to heavier-weight packages especially in business-to-consumer shipments partially offset by product
mix.

Ground products revenue per piece was relatively flat for the second quarter of 2016, but decreased 0.7% year-to-date compared with the same period of 2015 primarily
due to a decrease in average weight per piece and lower fuel surcharge rates. Additionally, customer and product mix changes adversely impacted revenue per piece as a greater
portion of volume in 2016, relative to 2015, came from residential customers and lighter-weight shipments. These drivers more than offset the rate actions taken since the fourth
quarter of 2015.

Fuel Surcharges
UPS applies a fuel surcharge on our domestic air and ground services. The air fuel surcharge is based on the U.S. Department of Energy’s (“DOE”) Gulf Coast spot price

for a gallon of kerosene-type jet fuel, while the ground fuel surcharge is based on the DOE’s On-Highway Diesel Fuel price. Based on published rates, the average fuel
surcharges for domestic air and ground products were as follows:

 
Three Months Ended

June 30,  Change  
Six Months Ended

June 30,  Change

 2016 2015  % Point  2016  2015  % Point

Next Day Air / Deferred 2.8%  4.5%  (1.7 )%  3.0%  4.9%  (1.9 )%
Ground 4.4%  5.3%  (0.9 )%  4.7%  5.8%  (1.1 )%

Total domestic fuel surcharge revenue decreased by $96 million in the second quarter of 2016 ($201 million year-to-date) as a result of lower fuel surcharge rates caused
by declining jet and diesel fuel prices; however, the impact of lower fuel prices was partially mitigated by pricing changes to the fuel surcharge indices, as well as the overall
increase in package volume.

Operating Expenses
Operating expenses for the segment increased $175 million in the second quarter of 2016 ($367 million year-to-date), primarily due to increases in pick-up and delivery

costs ($134 million) and the costs of package sorting ($25 million) for the quarter ($272 and $52 million, respectively, along with indirect operating costs of $57 million year-to-
date). For the second quarter, the cost increases were largely due to higher employee compensation expenses, which were impacted by (1) an increase in average daily union
labor hours to support volume growth; (2) an increase in wage rates; and (3) an increase in health and welfare costs (due to headcount and contractual contribution rate increases
to multiemployer plans). The year-to-date period was also impacted by an additional operating day, partially offset by a decrease in the cost of operating our domestic integrated
air and ground transportation network, primarily due to lower fuel costs.

Total cost per piece decreased slightly (0.2%) for the second quarter of 2016 compared with the second quarter of 2015 (1.1% year-to-date), as the cost increases described
previously were more than offset by productivity gains and lower fuel costs during the second quarter as well as lower weather related costs during the year-to-date period.
Productivity improvements have continued to be realized through adjusting our air and ground networks to better match volume levels and utilizing technology to increase
package sorting and delivery efficiency. The continued deployment of ORION has contained the growth of average

39



Table of Contents
UNITED PARCEL SERVICE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

daily vehicle miles driven, while the increased redirect of SurePost volume to optimize delivery density on UPS vehicles has reduced the delivery costs for business-to-
consumer shipments.
Operating Profit and Margin

Operating profit increased $32 million for the second quarter of 2016 compared with 2015 ($110 million year-to-date), as operating margin increased 10 basis points to
13.7% (30 basis points to 12.9% year-to-date). Revenue growth from increased volume and enhanced productivity through the continued deployment of ORION technology
resulted in higher operating profit and margins, but were partially offset by the net impact of fuel (fuel surcharge revenue decreased at a faster rate than fuel expense).
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International Package Operations

 
Three Months Ended

June 30,  Change  
Six Months Ended

June 30,  Change

 2016  2015  %  2016  2015  %

Average Daily Package Volume (in thousands):            
Domestic 1,599  1,530  4.5 %  1,558  1,553  0.3 %
Export 1,159  1,115  3.9 %  1,145  1,120  2.2 %

Total Avg. Daily Package Volume 2,758  2,645  4.3 %  2,703  2,673  1.1 %
Average Revenue Per Piece:            

Domestic $ 6.07  $ 6.13  (1.0 )%  $ 5.99  $ 6.11  (2.0 )%
Export 31.36  31.99  (2.0 )%  30.90  31.52  (2.0 )%

Total Avg. Revenue Per Piece $ 16.70  $ 17.03  (1.9 )%  $ 16.54  $ 16.76  (1.3 )%
Operating Days in Period 64  64    128  127   
Revenue (in millions):            

Domestic $ 621  $ 600  3.5 %  $ 1,195  $ 1,205  (0.8 )%
Export 2,326  2,283  1.9 %  4,529  4,483  1.0 %
Cargo and Other 130  162  (19.8)%  267  327  (18.3)%

Total Revenue $ 3,077  $ 3,045  1.1 %  $ 5,991  $ 6,015  (0.4 )%
Operating Expenses (in millions) $ 2,464  $ 2,493  (1.2 )%  $ 4,804  $ 4,965  (3.2 )%
Operating Profit (in millions) $ 613  $ 552  11.1 %  $ 1,187  $ 1,050  13.0 %
Operating Margin 19.9%  18.1%    19.8%  17.5%   
Currency Benefit / (Cost) – (in millions)*:           

Revenue     $ (15)      $ (74)
Operating Expenses     17      74
Operating Profit     $ 2      $ —

* Net of currency hedging; amount represents the change in currency translation compared to the prior year.       

Revenue
The change in overall revenue was impacted by the following factors in 2016 compared with the corresponding period of 2015:

 Volume  
Rates /

Product Mix  
Fuel

Surcharge  Currency  
Total Revenue

Change

Net Revenue Change Drivers:          
Second quarter 2016 vs. 2015 4.3%  (1.1 )%  (1.7 )%  (0.4 )%  1.1 %
Year-to-date 2016 vs. 2015 1.9%  0.7 %  (1.8 )%  (1.2 )%  (0.4 )%

Volume
Our overall average daily volume increased in the second quarter and year-to-date periods of 2016 when compared to 2015, largely due to broad demand from several

industries including the healthcare, retail, industrial manufacturing and distribution and high tech sectors.

The export volume growth in the second quarter and year-to-date periods of 2016 was mainly driven by our European and Asian operations, which experienced increases
in volume to most regions of the world. Europe export volume showed significant growth to all regions. Asian export volume showed particular strength in the Asia-to-Europe
and Asia-to-U.S. trade lanes. Americas export volume increased for the quarter, with solid growth in the Americas-to-U.S. trade lane. Export volume into the U.S. grew in all
trade lanes. However, U.S. export volume declined, largely due to the impact of the stronger U.S. Dollar, partially offset by growth in the U.S.-to-Europe trade lane. Overall
export volume growth by product was led by our premium express products, which increased at a faster rate than our standard products.
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The increase in domestic volume in the second quarter and year-to-date periods of 2016 was primarily due to growth in Germany, Italy, France and Turkey.

Rates and Product Mix
Total average revenue per piece decreased 1.9% in the second quarter of 2016 (1.3% year-to-date) including the impact of lower fuel surcharge rates and a 50 basis point

reduction from the impact of currency (140 basis point reduction year-to-date). These factors were partially offset by an increase in base rates and a continuing shift in product
mix towards premium products.

On December 28, 2015, we implemented an average 5.2% net increase in base and accessorial rates for international shipments originating in the United States
(Worldwide Express, Worldwide Saver, UPS Worldwide Expedited and UPS International Standard service). Rate changes for shipments originating outside the U.S. are made
throughout the year and vary by geographic market.

Export revenue per piece decreased 2.0% in the second quarter and year-to-date periods of 2016 including the impact of lower fuel surcharge rates and a 20 basis point
reduction from the impact of currency (80 basis point reduction year-to-date). These factors were partially offset by an increase in base rates and a continuing shift in product
mix towards our premium express services.

Domestic revenue per piece decreased 1.0% in the second quarter of 2016 (2.0% year-to-date) including the impact of lower fuel surcharge rates and a 200 basis point
reduction from the impact of currency (380 basis point reduction year-to-date). These factors were partially offset by an increase in base rates.

Fuel Surcharges
We maintain fuel surcharges on our international air and ground services. The fuel surcharges for international air products originating inside or outside the United States

are indexed to the DOE's Gulf Coast spot price for a gallon of kerosene-type jet fuel, while the fuel surcharges for ground products originating outside the United States are
indexed to fuel prices in the international region or country where the shipment takes place. Total international fuel surcharge revenue decreased by $54 million for the second
quarter of 2016 compared with 2015 ($114 million year-to-date), primarily due to lower fuel prices; however, this was partially offset by pricing changes made to the fuel
surcharge indices.

Operating Expenses
Overall operating expenses for the segment decreased $29 million in the second quarter of 2016 compared with 2015 ($161 million year-to-date). This decrease was

mostly due to lower fuel prices and a $17 million decrease from currency exchange rate movements ($74 million year-to-date).
The decrease in operating expenses was largely driven by our international integrated air and ground network, which decreased $38 million ($108 million year-to-date).

The expense decreases were due to Air Network Management initiatives, along with the impact of currency and fuel. Aircraft block hours were down 0.4% in the second quarter
(0.8% decrease year-to-date). This reduction in block hours was achieved even with a 3.9% increase in second quarter international export volume (2.2% decrease year-to-date)
and continuing air product service enhancements.

The remaining change in operating expenses in the second quarter and year-to-date of 2016 compared with 2015 was largely due to a reduction in pickup and delivery
costs and the costs of package sorting, partially offset by an increase in indirect operating costs.

Operating Profit and Margin
Operating profit increased $61 million in the second quarter of 2016 compared with 2015 ($137 million year-to-date), while operating margin increased by 180 basis

points to 19.9% (230 basis points to 19.8% year-to-date). Operating profit and margin were positively affected by several factors including revenue management initiatives, the
net impact of fuel, effective network management and cost containment initiatives.
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Supply Chain & Freight Operations

 
Three Months Ended

June 30,  Change  
Six Months Ended

June 30,  Change

 2016 2015  %  2016  2015  %

Freight LTL Statistics:            
Revenue (in millions) $ 600  $ 647  (7.3 )%  $ 1,164  $ 1,256  (7.3 )%
Revenue Per Hundredweight $ 23.47  $ 22.81  2.9 %  $ 23.36  $ 22.79  2.5 %
Shipments (in thousands) 2,540  2,728  (6.9 )%  4,956  5,302  (6.5 )%
Shipments Per Day (in thousands) 39.7  42.6  (6.9 )%  38.7  41.7  (7.2 )%
Gross Weight Hauled (in millions of lbs) 2,556  2,836  (9.9 )%  4,982  5,512  (9.6 )%
Weight Per Shipment (in lbs) 1,006  1,040  (3.3 )%  1,005  1,040  (3.4 )%
Operating Days in Period 64  64    128  127   

Revenue (in millions):            
Forwarding and Logistics $ 1,659  $ 1,319  25.8 %  $ 3,245  $ 2,649  22.5 %
Freight 693  752  (7.8 )%  1,349  1,462  (7.7 )%
Other 185  171  8.2 %  363  324  12.0 %

Total Revenue $ 2,537  $ 2,242  13.2 %  $ 4,957  $ 4,435  11.8 %
Operating Expenses (in millions): $ 2,345  $ 2,035  15.2 %  $ 4,618  $ 4,077  13.3 %
Operating Profit (in millions): $ 192  $ 207  (7.2 )%  $ 339  $ 358  (5.3 )%
Operating Margin 7.6%  9.2%    6.8%  8.1%   
Currency Benefit / (Cost) – (in millions)*:    $      $ 

Revenue     $ (9)      $ (32)
Operating Expenses     12      38
Operating Profit     $ 3      $ 6

* Amount represents the change in currency translation compared to the prior year.       

In August 2015, we acquired Coyote Logistics Midco, Inc ("Coyote"), a truckload freight brokerage company. Coyote's financial results are included in the above table
within Forwarding and Logistics from the date of acquisition, which has impacted the year-over-year comparability of revenue, operating expenses and operating profit.

Revenue
Total revenue for the Supply Chain & Freight segment increased $295 million in the second quarter of 2016 ($522 million year-to-date) compared with 2015. Forwarding

and Logistics revenue increased $340 million in the second quarter of 2016 ($596 million year-to-date) compared with 2015. Excluding the effect of Coyote, revenue decreased
$138 million in the second quarter of 2016 ($317 million year-to-date) compared with 2015, largely due to a combination of volume and tonnage declines in our international
and North American air freight businesses (impacted by management focus on reducing lower-yielding accounts and softer market conditions), lower rates charged to our
customers (largely due to overcapacity in the market), as well as the adverse impact of currency exchange rate movements and lower fuel surcharge rates (due to declining fuel
prices). Revenue for our logistics products increased in the second quarter and year-to-date periods of 2016 compared with 2015, as we experienced solid growth in our mail
services, healthcare, aerospace and automotive solutions; however, this was partially offset by the adverse impact of currency exchange rates and revenue declines among our
high tech customers.

Freight revenue decreased $59 million in the second quarter of 2016 ($113 million year-to-date) compared with 2015, driven by a 9.9% (9.6% year-to-date) decline in
tonnage, a 6.9% (6.5% year-to-date) decrease in shipments and a $26 million decrease ($58 million year-to-date) in fuel surcharge revenue due to lower diesel fuel prices. The
decline in shipments and the reduction in weight per shipment were impacted by revenue management initiatives, a decline in market demand and customer mix. LTL Revenue
per hundredweight increased slightly, as LTL base rate increases averaging 4.9% took effect on October 26, 2015 covering non-contractual shipments in the United States,
Canada and Mexico.
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Revenue for the other businesses within Supply Chain & Freight increased $14 million in the second quarter of 2016 ($39 million year-to-date) compared with 2015, due
to revenue growth at The UPS Store, UPS Capital and UPS Customer Solutions.

Operating Expenses
Total operating expenses for the Supply Chain & Freight segment increased $310 million in the second quarter of 2016 ($541 million year-to-date) compared with 2015.

Forwarding and Logistics operating expenses increased $345 million for the second quarter of 2016 ($608 million year-to-date) compared with 2015. This increase was largely
due to the acquisition of Coyote during the third quarter of 2015 partially offset by the impact of currency exchange rate movements and lower fuel expense. Purchased
transportation expense increased by $300 million in the second quarter of 2016 ($512 million year-to-date) compared to 2015 largely due to the acquisition of Coyote, as well as
increased volume and rates for mail services. These increases were partially offset by a combination of lower volume and tonnage in our international and North American air
freight forwarding businesses, lower buy rates due to softer market conditions and the impact of foreign currency exchange rates.

Although freight operating expenses decreased $46 million in the second quarter of 2016 ($102 million year-to-date) compared with 2015, total cost per LTL shipment
increased by 2.0% in the second quarter of 2016 (0.4% year-to-date) compared with 2015. The decrease in operating expense was largely due to the cost associated with
operating our linehaul network (which decreased $15 million over the prior year quarter and $43 million year-to-date), decreases in pick-up and delivery expenses (which
decreased $10 million over the prior year quarter and $24 million year-to-date) and decreases in other expenses (which decreased $21 million over the prior year quarter and
$35 million year-to-date). The declines in network costs and pick-up and delivery expenses were driven by a reduction in fuel expense and expense for outside transportation
carriers (largely due to lower LTL volume and fuel surcharges passed to us by outside carriers).

Operating expenses for the other businesses within Supply Chain & Freight increased $11 million in the second quarter of 2016 ($35 million year-to-date) compared with
2015.

Operating Profit and Margin
Total operating profit for the Supply Chain & Freight segment decreased $15 million in the second quarter of 2016 ($19 million year-to-date) compared with 2015.
Operating profit for the Forwarding and Logistics units, which includes Coyote, decreased by $3 million in the second quarter of 2016 ($12 million year-to-date)

compared with 2015, primarily due to volume and tonnage declines and revenue management initiatives undertaken in our global freight forwarding operations to improve low-
yielding accounts. Operating margins for our global freight forwarding operations improved in the second quarter and year-to-date periods of 2016 compared with 2015.
Operating profit and margins for the logistics unit increased in the second quarter of 2016 and decreased slightly year-to-date compared with 2015. Coyote generated operating
profit in the second quarter and year-to-date periods of 2016.

Operating profit for our freight unit decreased $14 million in the second quarter of 2016 ($12 million year-to-date) compared with 2015, as decreases in volume and
tonnage more than offset the increased yields and productivity improvements during the quarter. Margins were pressured as shipments declined at a faster rate than expenses.

The combined operating profit for all of our other businesses in this segment increased $2 million in the second quarter of 2016 ($5 million year-to-date) compared with
2015.
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Consolidated Operating Expenses

 
Three Months Ended

June 30,  Change  
Six Months Ended

June 30,  Change

 2016  2015  %  2016  2015  %

Operating Expenses (in millions):            
Compensation and Benefits $ 7,738  $ 7,502  3.1 %  $ 15,591  $ 15,066  3.5 %
Repairs and Maintenance 383  357  7.3 %  764  707  8.1 %
Depreciation and Amortization 555  510  8.8 %  1,107  1,016  9.0 %
Purchased Transportation 2,070  1,777  16.5 %  4,094  3,631  12.8 %
Fuel 505  639  (21.0)%  939  1,283  (26.8)%
Other Occupancy 245  230  6.5 %  514  524  (1.9 )%
Other Expenses 1,095  1,120  (2.2 )%  2,177  2,212  (1.6 )%

Total Operating Expenses $ 12,591  $ 12,135  3.8 %  $ 25,186  $ 24,439  3.1 %
            

Currency (Benefit) / Cost - (in millions)*     $ (29)      $ (112)
* Amount represents the change in currency translation compared to the prior year.       

Compensation and Benefits

Compensation costs increased $104 million for the second quarter of 2016 ($273 million year-to-date) compared with 2015 largely due to higher U.S. domestic hourly and
management compensation costs and the acquisition of Coyote during the third quarter of 2015. Excluding Coyote, total compensation costs increased 1.2% (1.9% year-to-date),
while consolidated average daily volume growth was 2.8% (2.4% year-to-date). U.S. domestic compensation costs for hourly employees increased largely due to contractual
union wage increases and a 2.0% increase in average daily union labor hours (1.9% year-to-date). The increase in average daily labor hours was less than daily volume growth
due to productivity gains. Compensation costs for management employees increased primarily due to a merit salary increase and growth in the overall size of the workforce.

Benefits expense increased $132 million for the second quarter of 2016 compared with 2015 ($252 million year-to-date) primarily due to the following factors:
• Health and welfare costs increased $80 million for the second quarter ($175 million year-to-date), largely due to increased contributions to multiemployer plans

resulting from contractual contribution rate increases, an overall increase in the size of the workforce and one additional operating day year-to-date.
• Pension expense increased $20 million for the second quarter ($43 million year-to-date), primarily due to additional expense for multiemployer pension plans, which

were impacted by contractual contribution rate increases and one additional operating day year-to-date.
• Vacation, holiday and excused absence expense increased $20 million for the second quarter ($39 million year-to-date), due to salary increases, growth in the overall

size of the workforce and one additional operating day year-to-date.
• Workers' compensation expense decreased $2 million in the second quarter ($28 million year-to-date). Insurance reserves are established for estimates of the loss that

we will ultimately incur on reported workers' compensation claims, as well as estimates of claims that have been incurred but not reported, and take into account a
number of factors including our history of claim losses, payroll growth and the impact of safety improvement initiatives. In 2016, we have experienced more favorable
actuarial adjustments compared with 2015, resulting in decreased expense.
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Repairs and Maintenance

The $26 million increase in repairs and maintenance expense for the second quarter of 2016 compared with 2015 ($57 million year-to-date) was primarily due to aircraft
engine maintenance, better cost alignment and one additional operating day year-to-date.
Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense increased $45 million in the second quarter of 2016 ($91 million year-to-date) compared with 2015, primarily due to three factors:
(1) depreciation expense on vehicles increased due to the replacement of older, fully-depreciated vehicles, technology upgrades on new vehicles and an overall increase in the
size of our vehicle fleet in our U.S. Domestic Package and UPS Freight operations; (2) depreciation expense for buildings and facilities increased due to leasehold
improvements and purchases of new equipment and (3) amortization expense increased largely due to new internally developed capitalized software, as well as intangible assets
resulting from business acquisitions.

Purchased Transportation

The $293 million increase in purchased transportation expense charged to us by third-party air, rail, ocean and truck carriers for the second quarter of 2016 ($463 million
year-to-date) compared with 2015 was primarily driven by the following factors:

• Expense for our forwarding and logistics business increased $300 million in the second quarter ($515 million year-to-date), due to the acquisition of Coyote and
increased volume and rates for mail services; these items were partially offset by the impact of decreased volume and tonnage in our international and North American
air freight and ocean businesses and the impact of currency exchange rate movements.

• Expense for our International Package segment increased $17 million in the second quarter ($27 million year-to-date), primarily due to the increased usage of third
party carriers; these items were partially offset by the impact of currency exchange rate movements as well as lower fuel surcharges passed to us from outside
transportation providers.

• Expense for our U.S. Domestic Package segment decreased $9 million for the second quarter ($34 million year-to-date), primarily due to lower fuel surcharges passed
to us from rail carriers and outside contract carriers.

• Expense for our UPS Freight business decreased $15 million in the second quarter ($42 million year-to-date), due to a decrease in LTL shipments and lower fuel
surcharges passed to us from outside transportation providers.

Fuel

The $134 million decrease in fuel expense for the second quarter of 2016 ($344 million year-to-date) compared with 2015 was primarily due to lower jet fuel, diesel and
unleaded gasoline prices, which decreased fuel expense by $158 million ($370 million year-to-date). These decreases were partially offset by increased fuel consumption,
primarily due to increases in total aircraft block hours and Domestic Package delivery stops (due to higher volume) and lower alternative fuel credits, which combined to
increase expense by $24 million in the second quarter of 2016 ($26 million year-to-date).

Other Occupancy

Other occupancy expense increased $15 million in the second quarter of 2016 as compared to 2015 primarily due to higher facility rent expense. Year-to-date 2016
expense decreased $10 million as compared to 2015 largely due to a decrease in facility rent expense, natural gas and electric utility costs and snow removal costs at our
operating facilities in the first quarter of 2016.

Other Expenses

The $25 million decrease in other expense in the second quarter of 2016 ($35 million year-to-date) compared with 2015 was largely due to lower utilization of third party
tractor rentals and better cost alignment.
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Other Income and (Expense)

 
Three Months Ended

June 30,  Change  
Six Months Ended

June 30,  Change

 2016  2015  %  2016  2015  %

(in millions)            

Investment income and other $ 8  $ 4  100.0%  $ 25  $ 8  NA
Interest expense $ (94)  $ (86)  9.3%  $ (187)  $ (173)  8.1%

Investment Income and Other
The growth in investment income and other for the second quarter and year-to-date of 2016 as compared to 2015 was primarily due to a decrease in losses from fair value

adjustments on real estate partnerships, higher interest income and unrealized gains on investments and a benefit from foreign currency exchange rate movements.
Interest Expense

Interest expense increased in the second quarter and year-to-date of 2016 primarily due to an increase in long-term debt and higher effective interest rates on senior notes.
 

Income Tax Expense

 
Three Months Ended

June 30,  Change  
Six Months Ended

June 30,  Change

 2016  2015  %  2016  2015  %

(in millions)            

Income Tax Expense $ 683  $ 648  5.4%  $ 1,299  $ 1,212  7.2%
Effective Tax Rate 35.0%  34.5%    35.1%  34.9%   

 Our effective tax rate increased to 35.0% in the second quarter of 2016 from 34.5% in the same period of 2015 (35.1% year-to-date in 2016 compared to 34.9% in the
same period of 2015), primarily due to a decrease in U.S. Federal and state tax credits relative to total pre-tax income. This was offset by favorable changes in the proportion of
our taxable income in certain U.S. and non-U.S. jurisdictions.

 

47



 
Table of Contents

UNITED PARCEL SERVICE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Liquidity and Capital Resources
 
Cash Flows From Operating Activities

The following is a summary of the significant sources (uses) of cash from operating activities (amounts in millions):

 
Six Months Ended

June 30,

 2016  2015

Net income $ 2,400  $ 2,256
Non-cash operating activities (a) 1,829  1,670
Pension and postretirement benefit contributions (UPS-sponsored plans) (89 )  (99 )
Hedge margin receivables and payables 136  202
Income tax receivables and payables 45  115
Changes in working capital and other non-current assets and liabilities 364  141
Other operating activities 8  (46 )

Net cash from operating activities $ 4,693  $ 4,239
___________________ 
(a) Represents depreciation and amortization, gains and losses on derivative transactions and foreign exchange, deferred income taxes, provisions for uncollectible accounts, pension and postretirement

benefit expense, stock compensation expense, and other non-cash items.

Net cash from operating activities increased $454 million in the second quarter of 2016 compared with 2015, largely due to higher net income, improvements in our
working capital position, and higher non-cash expenses, including higher depreciation and stock compensation expense as well as lower deferred tax benefits. These increases
were partially offset by reduced receipts of hedge margin collateral from counterparties and increased net payments for income taxes. The net hedge margin collateral received
from derivative counterparties decreased by $66 million in 2016 relative to 2015, due to a decreased net fair value asset position of the derivative contracts used in our currency
and interest rate hedging programs. Net cash payments for income taxes increased in 2016 compared with 2015 and were impacted by the timing of estimated tax payments and
receipt of refunds relative to changes in estimates for the underlying tax liabilities. The $223 million improvement in our working capital position in 2016 was primarily driven
by decreased average days outstanding on accounts receivable and favorable changes in the timing of cash receipts and payments.

As of June 30, 2016, our worldwide holdings of cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities were $5.672 billion, of which $2.272 billion was held by non-U.S.
subsidiaries. The amount of cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities held by our U.S. and non-U.S subsidiaries fluctuates throughout the year due to a variety of factors,
including the timing of cash receipts and disbursements in the normal course of business. Cash provided by operating activities in the U.S. continues to be our primary source of
funds to finance U.S. operating needs, capital expenditures, share repurchases and dividend payments to shareowners. To the extent that such amounts represent previously
untaxed earnings, the cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities held by non-U.S. subsidiaries could be subject to tax if such amounts were repatriated in the form of
dividends; however, not all non-U.S. cash balances would have to be repatriated in the form of a dividend if returned to the U.S. When amounts earned by non-U.S. subsidiaries
are expected to be indefinitely reinvested, no accrual for taxes is provided.

48



 
Table of Contents

UNITED PARCEL SERVICE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Our primary sources (uses) of cash from investing activities were as follows (amounts in millions):

 
Six Months Ended

June 30,

 2016  2015

Net cash used in investing activities $ (1,794)  $ (2,776)

    

Capital Expenditures:    
Buildings and facilities $ (473)  $ (387)
Aircraft and parts (14 )  (12 )
Vehicles (282 )  (341 )
Information technology (194 )  (218 )
 $ (963)  $ (958)

    

Capital Expenditures as a % of Revenue (3.3 )%  (3.4 )%
    

Other Investing Activities:    
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment $ 11  $ 8
Net (increase) decrease in finance receivables $ (13)  $ (13)
Net (purchases), sales and maturities of marketable securities $ (791)  $ (1,713)
Cash paid for business acquisitions, net of cash and cash equivalents acquired $ (3)  $ (90)
Other investing activities $ (35)  $ (10)

We have commitments for the purchase of vehicles, equipment and real estate to provide for the replacement of existing capacity and anticipated future growth. We
generally fund our capital expenditures with our cash from operations. Capital spending on buildings and facilities increased in the first six months of 2016 in our U.S. and
international package businesses, largely due to several facility automation and capacity expansion projects. Total capital spending on information technology decreased in the
first six months of 2016, largely due to a decrease in spending for technology equipment, partially offset by an increase in expenditures for capitalized software projects. Capital
spending on aircraft in both 2016 and 2015 primarily related to purchases of rotable parts for our existing aircraft fleet. Capital spending on vehicles decreased in the first six
months of 2016 in our U.S. and international package businesses, largely due to the timing of vehicle replacements.

Future capital spending will depend on a variety of factors, including economic and industry conditions. We anticipate that our capital expenditures for 2016 will be
approximately $2.8 billion.

The net changes in finance receivables were primarily due to growth in our cargo finance products and loan principal paydowns in our business credit and leasing
portfolios. The purchases and sales of marketable securities are largely determined by liquidity needs and the periodic rebalancing of investment types and will fluctuate from
period to period.

The cash paid for business acquisitions in 2016 was related to our acquisition of area franchise rights related to The UPS Store. The cash paid for business acquisitions in
the first six months of 2015 was primarily related to our acquisition of Poltraf Sp. z.o.o., Parcel Pro, Inc., and the Insured Parcel Services Division of G4S International
Logistics. Other investing activities include minority investments in private ventures, capital contributions into certain investment partnerships and changes in restricted cash
balances and various other items.
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Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Our primary sources (uses) of cash from financing activities are as follows (amounts in millions, except per share data):

 

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2016  2015

Net cash used in financing activities $ (2,584)  $ (252)
Share Repurchases:    
Cash expended for shares repurchased $ (1,329)  $ (1,348)
Number of shares repurchased 13.3  13.5
Shares outstanding at period end 879  896
Percent reduction in shares outstanding (0.8 )%  (1.0 )%
Dividends:    
Dividends declared per share $ 1.56  $ 1.46
Cash expended for dividend payments $ (1,327)  $ (1,270)
Borrowings:    
Net borrowings of debt principal $ (25)  $ 2,403
Other Financing Activities:    
Cash received for common stock issuances $ 147  $ 140
Other financing activities $ (50)  $ (177)
Capitalization (as of March 31 each year):    
Total debt outstanding at period end $ 14,366  $ 13,152
Total shareowners’ equity at period end 2,650  1,968
Total capitalization $ 17,016  $ 15,120
Debt to Total Capitalization % 84.4  %  87.0  %

We repurchased a total of 13.1million shares of class A and class B common stock for $1.330 billion in the first six months of 2016, and 13.5 million shares for $1.358
billion for the first six months of 2015 ($1.329 and $1.348 billion in repurchases for 2016 and 2015, respectively, are reported on the statements of consolidated cash flows due
to unsettled repurchases). During the first quarter of 2016, we also exercised a capped call option that we entered into in 2015 which allowed us to repurchase 0.2 million class B
shares. The $25 million premium payment for this capped call option was classified as an other financing activity in 2015. In total, shares repurchased and received year-to-date
in 2016 were 13.3 million shares for $1.355 billion.

In May 2016, the Board of Directors approved a new share repurchase authorization of $8.0 billion, which has no expiration date. As of June 30, 2016, we had $7.505
billion of this share repurchase authorization available.

Share repurchases may take the form of accelerated share repurchases, open market purchases or other such methods as we deem appropriate. The timing of our share
repurchases will depend upon market conditions. Unless terminated earlier by the resolution of our Board, the program will expire when we have purchased all shares authorized
for repurchase under the program. We anticipate repurchasing a total of approximately $2.7 billion of shares in 2016.

The declaration of dividends is subject to the discretion of the Board of Directors and will depend on various factors, including our net income, financial condition, cash
requirements, future prospects and other relevant factors. We increased our quarterly cash dividend payment to $0.78 per share in 2016, compared with the previous $0.73
quarterly dividend rate in 2015. We expect to continue the practice of paying regular cash dividends.

Issuances and repayments of debt in the first six months of 2016 and 2015 consisted primarily of commercial paper and the issuances of $118 million and $74 million of
floating rate senior notes in March 2016 and June 2016, respectively. We consider the overall fixed and floating interest rate mix of our portfolio and the related overall cost of
borrowing when planning for future issuances and non-scheduled repayments of debt.
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As of June 30, 2016, our commercial paper programs had $2.749 billion outstanding in a variety of currencies, which includes $1.952 billion and €718 million ($797
million). The average balance of our U.S. dollar denominated commercial paper was $959 million and the average interest rate paid was 0.41% during the six months ended
June 30, 2016. The average balance of our pound sterling denominated commercial paper was £94 million ($135 million) and the average interest rate paid was 0.52% during
the six months ended June 30, 2016. The average balance of our euro denominated commercial paper was €345 million ($385 million) and the average interest rate received was
-0.20% during the six months ended June 30, 2016. The amount of commercial paper outstanding fluctuates throughout the year based on liquidity needs.

The variation in cash received from common stock issuances to employees was primarily due to the level of stock option exercises during the first six months of 2016 and
2015.

The cash outflows in other financing activities were impacted by several factors. Cash inflows (outflows) from the premium payments and settlements of capped call
options for the purchase of UPS class B shares were $104 and ($46) million during the first six months of 2016 and 2015, respectively. Cash outflows related to the repurchase
of shares to satisfy tax withholding obligations on vested employee stock awards was $169 and $154 million during the first six months of 2016 and 2015, respectively.
 

Sources of Credit

See note 9 to the unaudited consolidated financial statements for a discussion of our available credit and the financial covenants that we are subject to as part of our credit
agreements.
 

Guarantees and Other Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have guarantees or other off-balance sheet financing arrangements, including variable interest entities, which we believe could have a material impact on our

financial condition or liquidity.
 

Contingencies
See note 10 and note 6 to the unaudited consolidated financial statements for a discussion of judicial proceedings and other matters arising from the conduct of our

business activities, and note 15 for a discussion of income tax related matters.
 

Collective Bargaining Agreements

Status of Collective Bargaining Agreements
See note 6 to the unaudited consolidated financial statements for a discussion of the status of our collective bargaining agreements.

Multiemployer Benefit Plans
See note 6 to the unaudited consolidated financial statements for a discussion of our participation in multiemployer benefit plans.

 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Adoption of New Accounting Standards

See note 2 to the unaudited consolidated financial statements for a discussion of recently adopted accounting standards.

Accounting Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective
See note 2 to the unaudited consolidated financial statements for a discussion of accounting standards issued, but not yet effective.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market
Risk

We are exposed to market risk from changes in certain commodity prices, foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices. All of these market risks arise
in the normal course of business, as we do not engage in speculative trading activities. In order to manage the risk arising from these exposures, we utilize a variety of
commodity, foreign exchange and interest rate forward contracts, options and swaps. A discussion of our accounting policies for derivative instruments and further disclosures
are provided in note 14 to the unaudited consolidated financial statements.

The total fair value asset (liability) of our derivative financial instruments is summarized in the following table (in millions):

 
June 30, 

2016  
December 31, 

2015

Currency Derivatives $ 285  $ 490
Interest Rate Derivatives 337  229
Investment Market Price Derivatives 181  (4 )
 $ 803  $ 715

Our market risks, hedging strategies and financial instrument positions at June 30, 2016 have not materially changed from those disclosed in our Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015. In 2016, we entered into several foreign currency forwards on the Euro, British Pound Sterling, Canadian Dollar, Japanese Yen,
Mexican Peso and Indian Rupee, as well as terminated forwards that expired during the first six months of 2016. We entered into several foreign currency options on the Euro,
British Pound Sterling and Canadian Dollar, as well as terminated currency option positions that expired during the first six months of 2016. We entered into new forwards to
manage the market value fluctuations of certain investments in marketable securities, as well as terminated forwards that expired during the first six months of 2016. The
remaining fair value changes between December 31, 2015 and June 30, 2016 in the preceding table are primarily due to interest rate, foreign currency exchange rate and market
price changes between those dates.

The forward contracts, swaps and options previously discussed contain an element of risk that the counterparties may be unable to meet the terms of the agreements;
however, we minimize such risk exposures for these instruments by limiting the counterparties to banks and financial institutions that meet established credit guidelines and by
monitoring counterparty credit risk to prevent concentrations of credit risk with any single counterparty.

We have agreements with all of our active counterparties (covering the majority of our derivative positions) containing early termination rights and/or zero threshold
bilateral collateral provisions whereby cash is required based on the net fair value of derivatives associated with those counterparties. Events such as a credit rating downgrade
(depending on the ultimate rating level) could also allow us to take additional protective measures such as the early termination of trades. Under these agreements, we held cash
collateral of $582 million and were not required to post any collateral with our counterparties as of June 30, 2016.

We have not historically incurred, and do not expect to incur in the future, any losses as a result of counterparty default.

The information concerning market risk in Item 7A under the caption “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk” of our Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2015, is hereby incorporated by reference in this report.
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Item 4. Controls and
Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures:
As of the end of the period covered by this report, management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the design

and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act”)). The scope of
their evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures did not include any disclosure controls or procedures of Coyote, which was acquired in August
2015. The acquired business constituted approximately four percent of total assets, three percent of revenues and less than one percent of net income of the unaudited
consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the quarter ended June 30, 2016. Further discussion of this acquisition can be found in note 8 "Business Combinations" to
our unaudited consolidated financial statements. This exclusion is in accordance with the SEC's general guidance that a recently acquired business may be omitted from the
scope of the assessment following the acquisition.

Based upon that evaluation, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded that the disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that
information required to be disclosed in reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is (1) recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified
in Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms; and (2) accumulated and communicated to our management to allow their timely decisions regarding required
disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting:
There were no changes in the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting during the quarter ended June 30, 2016 that have materially affected, or are reasonably

likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

53



 
Table of Contents

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

 

Item 1. Legal
Proceedings

For a discussion of legal proceedings affecting us and our subsidiaries, please see note 10 to the unaudited consolidated financial statements included in this report.
 

Item 1A. Risk
Factors

There have been no material changes to the risk factors described in Part 1, Item 1A in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015 other than
as described below.

Employee health and retiree health and pension benefit costs represent a significant expense to us.

In addition to our ongoing multi-employer pension plan obligations, we face additional exposure with respect to benefits earned in the Central States Pension Fund (the
"CSPF"), from which UPS withdrew in 2007 in return for fully funding its allocable share of unfunded vested benefits thereunder. Under a collective bargaining agreement with
the IBT, UPS agreed to provide coordinating benefits under the UPS/IBT Full-Time Employee Pension Plan (the “UPS/IBT Pension Plan”) to offset the effect of certain benefit
reductions by CSPF applicable to UPS participants retiring on or after January 1, 2008, which resulted in the recognition of a $1.7 billion pension liability in 2007. Additionally,
UPS agreed to provide coordinating benefits under the UPS/IBT Pension Plan to offset certain benefit reductions in the event that benefits were lawfully reduced in the future by
CSPF. We have no other multi-employer pension plans subject to such a coordinated benefits backstop.

In December 2014, Congress passed the Multiemployer Pension Reform Act (“MPRA”), which for the first time ever allowed multi-employer pension plans such as CSPF
to reduce benefit payments to retirees, subject to specific guidelines in the statute and government oversight. In 2015, CSPF submitted a proposed pension benefit reduction
plan to the U.S. Department of Treasury under MPRA which proposes to make retirement benefit reductions to CSPF participants, including to the benefits of certain UPS
employee participants.

We vigorously challenged the proposed benefit reduction plan because we believed that it did not comply with the law and that certain actions by CSPF were invalid. In
April 2016, we estimated that we would be required to record a 2016 charge of approximately $3.2 billion to $3.8 billion, if the CSPF pension benefit reduction plan was
approved and implemented as proposed. On May 6, 2016, the U.S. Department of Treasury rejected the proposed plan submitted by CSPF, stating that it had determined that the
CSPF plan failed to satisfy a number of requirements set forth in the MPRA.

The CSPF has asserted that it will become insolvent within ten years which could lead to the reduction of retirement benefits. As a result, it is possible that the CSPF will
continue to explore options for making retirement benefit reductions to plan participants to forestall insolvency. If the CSPF reduces benefits to plan participants, UPS may be
required to provide coordinating benefits under the UPS/IBT Pension Plan, thereby increasing the projected benefit obligation for the UPS/IBT Pension Plan. The potential for
benefit reductions to CSPF plan participants is subject to a number of uncertainties, including actions that may be taken by CSPF, the federal government or others. These
actions include whether the CSPF will submit a revised benefit reduction plan, the effect of discount rates and various other actuarial assumptions and the extent to which
benefits are guaranteed by the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation. Due to the numerous uncertainties that could affect whether, and the extent to which, benefits to CSPF
plan participants are reduced, we are not currently able to estimate a range of additional obligations, if any, that could arise to UPS. We will continue to assess the impact of
these uncertainties on the projected benefit obligation of the UPS/IBT Pension Plan in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification Topic 715 Compensation -
Retirement Benefits. We have not recognized any liability for additional coordinating benefits at this time, but the current projected benefit obligation for the UPS/IBT Pension
Plan could significantly increase as a result of these matters.
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Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of
Proceeds

(c) A summary of our repurchases of our class A and class B common stock during the second quarter of 2016 is as follows (in millions, except per share amounts):

 

Total Number
of Shares

Purchased(1)  

Average
Price Paid
Per Share  

Total Number
of Shares Purchased
as Part of Publicly

Announced Program  

Approximate Dollar
Value of Shares that

May Yet be  Purchased
Under the Program

April 1 – April 30, 2016 1.8  $ 105.19  1.5  $ 604
May 1 – May 31, 2016 3.6  103.50  3.5  7,662
June 1– June 30, 2016 1.5  104.55  1.5  7,505

Total April 1 – June 30, 2016 6.9  $ 104.13  6.5   
_________________ 
(1) Includes shares repurchased through our publicly announced share repurchase programs and shares tendered to pay the exercise price and tax withholding on employee

stock options.

In May 2016, the Board of Directors approved a new share repurchase authorization of $8.0 billion, which has no expiration date.

Share repurchases may take the form of accelerated share repurchases, open market purchases, or other such methods as we deem appropriate. The timing of our share
repurchases will depend upon market conditions. Unless terminated earlier by the resolution of our Board, the program will expire when we have purchased all shares authorized
for repurchase under the program. We anticipate repurchasing a total of approximately $2.7 billion of shares in 2016.
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Item 6. Exhibits
These exhibits are either incorporated by reference into this report or filed with this report as indicated below.

Index to Exhibits:

   
3.1

  
—

  
Form of Restated Certificate of Incorporation of United Parcel Service, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Form 8-K filed on May 12,
2010).

   
3.2

  
—

  
Amended and Restated Bylaws of United Parcel Service, Inc. as of February 14, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Form 8-K, filed
on February 19, 2013).

     
4.1  —  Form of Note for Floating Rate Senior Notes due March 15, 2066 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Form 8-K filed on April 1, 2016).

     
†10.1

   
Amendment No. 1 to UPS Retirement Plan, as Amended and Restated, effective as of June 30, 2016.

     
11

  
—

  
Statement regarding Computation of per Share Earnings (incorporated by reference to Note 13 in “Item 1. Financial Statements” of this quarterly
report on Form 10-Q).

   
†12   —   Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.

   
†31.1   —   Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

   
†31.2   —   Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

   
†32.1

  
—

  
Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

   
†32.2

  
—

  
Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

   
†101

  

—

  

The following financial information from the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2016, formatted in XBRL (Extensible
Business Reporting Language): (i) the Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) the Statements of Consolidated Income, (iii) the Statements of
Consolidated Comprehensive Income, (iv) the Statements of Consolidated Cash Flows, and (v) the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

___________________

† Filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly
authorized.

 
 
 

UNITED PARCEL SERVICE, INC.
(Registrant)

   
Date: August 5, 2016 By:   /S/    RICHARD N. PERETZ        

     Richard N. Peretz

     

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Duly Authorized Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer)
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AMENDMENT ONE
TO THE

UPS RETIREMENT PLAN

WHEREAS, United Parcel Service of America, Inc. (the "Company") maintains the UPS Retirement Plan (the "Plan"), amended and restated effective January 1,
2014; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 7.1 of the Plan, the Company's board of directors (the "Board") may amend the Plan at any time; and

WHEREAS, the Company desires to amend the Plan to freeze eligibility effective June 30, 2016, such that anyone hired, rehired, or transferred to Employee status
on or after July 1, 2016 (other than those participants eligible to participate in the Plan in accordance with Appendix M) shall not be eligible to participate in the Plan; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the Plan is amended as follows, effective June 30, 2016:

1.

The introductory section of the Plan is amended to add the following:

FURTHERMORE, the Plan was amended effective June 30, 2016 to provide for a freeze of eligibility effective as of that date for any individual hired, rehired, or
transferred to Employee status on or after July 1, 2016. All employees who were employed as an Employee on June 30, 2016 shall remain Participants and shall continue to
earn Benefit Service and accrue benefits as set forth under this Plan as long as such individual remains employed as an Employee, but any individual hired, rehired, or
transferred to Employee status on or after July 1, 2016 shall generally be ineligible to participate in the Plan, and shall generally be ineligible to accrue benefits under the
Plan, except as specifically set forth herein. This shall not affect any individual participating or who becomes eligible to participate in the Plan by Appendix M but only to
the extent of the benefits described in Appendix M. For clarification, any individual hired, rehired, or transferred to Employee status on or after July 1, 2016 who had a
previously accrued benefit under the Plan, shall continue to be considered a "Participant" under the Plan, but only to the extent of such previously accrued benefit. No
additional Benefit Service for such an individual shall apply or be earned, nor shall any benefits generally increase following the date such individual is hired, rehired, or
transferred to Employee status after June 30, 2016, except as may be specifically set forth under this Plan.



2.

Section 1.l (h) ("Benefit Service") is amended by revising paragraph (v) to read as follows:

(v)  Terminated and Rehired Employees after December 31, 2007, but before July 1, 2016. An employee who was employed as an Employee on December 31,
2007 will continue to earn Benefit Service described in this Section 1.1(h) after 2007 for all purposes as long as he remains employed as an Employee, but an
employee who ceases to be employed as an Employee whether as a result of termination of employment or a transfer to a non-Employee position will cease to earn
Benefit Service credit after such termination or transfer except as provided in this Section 1.1(h)(v). An Employee who is transferred to a non-Employee position
(whether on, before or after January 1, 2008) and then is transferred back to an Employee position or rehired as an Employee on or after January 1, 2008, but
before July 1, 2016 and who has not commenced benefits under a Final Average Compensation Formula or the Pre-2006 Motor Cargo Formula shall continue to
earn Benefit Service as described in Section 1.1(h) following such transfer or rehire solely for purposes of determining early retirement subsidies, but not benefit
accrual, under a Final Average Compensation Formula or the Pre-2006 Motor Cargo Formula for the benefit accrued before he or she terminated service or
transferred to the non-Employee position until he or she terminates employment with the Employer Company and all Related Employers. The provisions of this
Section 1.l (h)(v) will not affect any Crewmember covered by Appendix M but only to the extent of the benefits described in Appendix M.

3.

Section 1.l(h) ("Benefit Service") is amended by adding a new paragraph (vi) to read as follows:

(vi) Newly Hired and Rehired Employees and Individuals Transferred to Employee Status after June 30, 2016. An employee who was employed as an
Employee on December 31, 2007 and who remained employed as an Employee through June 30, 2016 will continue to earn Benefit Service described in this
Section 1.l(h) after June 30, 2016 for all purposes as long as he remains employed as an Employee, but an employee who ceases to be employed as an Employee
whether as a result of termination of employment or a transfer to a non Employee position will cease to earn Benefit Service credit after such termination or
transfer.    Any individual who is newly hired on or after July 1, 2016 shall not be eligible to participate in the Plan and shall not be entitled to earn any Benefit
Service under this Section 1.l(h). The provisions of this Section l.l (h)(vi) will not affect any Crew member covered by Appendix M but only to the extent of the
benefits described in Appendix M.

4.

Section 1.1(eeee) ("Year of Service") is amended by adding the following provision to the end of such section to read as follows:

For purposes of clarification, for individuals who return to Employee status on or after July 1, 2016 shall continue to earn Years of Service as set forth in this
Section 1.1(eeee) of the Plan.



5.

Section 2.2 is hereby amended to read as follows:

Section 2.2 Eligibility Requirements on or after January l , 2008, but before July l, 2016.

Any Employee included as a Participant under the provisions of the Plan as in effect immediately before January 1, 2008 will continue to participate in accordance
with the provisions of this Plan. A Crewmember will become a Participant as described in Appendix M but only to the extent of the benefits described in Appendix
M. An individual hired as an Employee or transferred from a non-Employee position into a position as an Employee prior to January 1, 2008 will become a
Participant in accordance with Section 2.1. An individual hired or rehired as an Employee or transferred from a non-Employee position into a position as an
Employee on or after January 1, 2008, but before July 1, 2016 will immediately become a Participant in this Plan.

6.

A new Section 2.3 is hereby added to the Plan to read as follows:

Section 2.3 Eligibility Requirements on or after July l , 2016.

Any Employee included as a Participant under the provisions of the Plan as in effect immediately before July 1, 2016 will continue to participate in accordance with
the provisions of this Plan. A Crewmember will become a Participant on or after July 1, 2016 as described in Appendix M but only to the extent of the benefits
described in Appendix M. An individual hired or rehired as an Employee or transferred from a non-Employee position into a position as an Employee on or after
July 1, 2016 will not be eligible to participate in the Plan. For clarification, any person who had an accrued benefit under the Plan prior to July 1, 2016 and who is
hired, rehired, or transferred to Employee status on or after July 1, 2016 shall continue to be considered a "Participant" under the Plan, but only to the extent of
such previously accrued benefit, except as may be specifically provided under the terms of the Plan.

7.

Section 4.7 of the Plan is hereby revised to add the following sentence to the end thereof:

Notwithstanding anything in this Section 4.7 to the contrary, individuals hired, rehired, or transferred to Employee status on or after July 1, 2016 shall generally not
be eligible to participate in the Plan, and shall be eligible for a Portable Account Benefit only to the extent such individual earned Portable Account Benefits prior to
his or her termination of employment or transfer out of Employee status, as per the terms of the Plan. Other than as expressly set forth under Section 5.3(g), no
additional Portable Account Benefits shall be earned by any individual following their hire date, rehire date, or date of transfer to Employee status on or after July
1, 2016.

8.



Section 5.2(a)(i) of the Plan is hereby revised to read as follows:

Section 5 .2     Benefit Amounts.

(a)    Accrued Benefit. The amount of the monthly pension payable to a
Participant in the Normal Form commencing as of his or her Normal Retirement Date or, if later, the date he or she actually retires determined as
follows:

(i) General. For a Participant, other than a Grandfathered Participant or a Pre-2001 Participant, the sum of A, B, C and D,
where:

(A) = the RPA Formula benefit, if any,
(B) = the UPS Freight Formula benefit, if any,
(C) = the Pre-2006 Motor Cargo Formula benefit, if any, and
(D) = the Portable Account Benefit, if any.

For Plan Years beginning after December 31, 2007, each Participant who has at least one Hour of Service on or after January 1, 2008 will accrue either a
Portable Account Benefit or a Final Average Compensation Formula benefit, but not both. Ifa Participant is eligible to accrue a Portable Account Benefit,
he shall not be eligible to accrue a Final Average Compensation Formula benefit.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Participant who is eligible for a Portable Account Benefit may continue to increase his or her Final Average
Compensation and his or her years of Benefit Service earned after December 31, 2007, if any, will be taken into account solely for purposes of determining
early retirement subsidies, but not benefit accrual, under the Final Average Compensation Formula and Pre-2006 Motor Cargo Formula.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, each individual who is hired, reemployed, or transferred to Employee status on or after July 1, 2016, shall not be eligible to
accrue additional benefits either under a Portable Account Benefit or a Final Average Compensation Formula benefit, except as specifically provided in
Section 5.3(g).

9.

Section 5.3(g)(i) of the Plan is hereby revised to read as follows:

(i) General. For Plan Years beginning after December 31, 2007, each Participant who has at least one Hour of Service on or after January 1, 2008 will
accrue either a Portable Account Benefit or a Final Average Compensation Formula benefit, but not both. If a Participant is eligible to accrue a Portable
Account Benefit, he or she shall not be eligible to accrue a Final Average Compensation Formula benefit.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Participant who is eligible for a Portable Account Benefit may continue to increase his or her Final Average
Compensation.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, each individual who is hired, reemployed, or transferred to Employee status on or after July I , 2016, shall not be eligible to
accrue additional benefits either under a Portable Account Benefit or a Final Average Compensation Formula benefit , except as specifically provided in
this Section 5.3(g)

10.



Section 5.3(g)(ii) of the Plan is hereby revised to read as follows:

(ii) Eligibility for Portable Account Benefit. A Participant is eligible to accrue a Portable Account Benefit
if:

(A) he or she is hired or rehired as an Employee on or after January 1, 2008, but before July 1, 2016;
or

(B) he or she is transferred from a non-Employee position into an Employee position on or after January 1, 2008, but before July 1,
2016.

However, a Participant whose terms and conditions of employment are governed by a collective bargaining agreement shall not be eligible to accrue a
Portable Account Benefit unless expressly provided by the collective bargaining agreement.

11.

Section 5.3(g)(iv) of the Plan is hereby revised to read as follows:

(iv) Interest Credits. An Interest Credit will b e allocated t o each Portable Account Participant's Portable Account as of the last day of each Plan Year,
calculated by multiplying his or her Account Balance as of the first day of that Plan Year by the Interest Credit Percentage for that Plan Year. A Portable
Account will be credited with an Interest Credit for each Plan Year until the Portable Account Participant's benefit commencement date without regard to
whether the Portable Account Participant is an Employee. If the Portable Account Participant's benefit commencement date is other than the last day of a
Plan Year, the Interest Credit for the Plan Year that includes the benefit commencement date will be prorated based on the ratio of whole months expired
in the year before the benefit commencement date, to 12. If a Participant described in the preceding sentence is reemployed as an Employee during the
same Plan Year, no additional Interest Credit will be made for that Plan Year. Notwithstanding the provisions in this 5.3(g) which provide that
individuals who are hired, reemployed, or transferred to Employee status on or after July 1, 2016 shall not be eligible to earn a Portable Account Benefit
for periods on or after such hire, reemployment or transfer to Employee status date, any Participant who previously earned a Portable Account Benefit
prior to such Participant's reemployment or date of transfer to Employee status on or after July 1, 2016, shall remain eligible to receive Interest Credits for
each Plan Year until such Participant's benefit commencement date as set forth in this sub-paragraph.

12.

Section 9.4 of the Plan is hereby revised to add a new paragraph (e) to read as follows:

(e) No action at law or in equity to recover under this Plan shall be commenced later than one year from the date of the decision on review (or if no decision is
furnished within 120 days of receipt of the request for review, one year after the 120th day after receipt of the request for review). Failure to file suit
within this time period shall extinguish any right to benefits under the Plan.

Any action at law or in equity to recover under this Plan by a Participant or beneficiary relating to or arising under the Plan shall only be brought in the US
District Court for the Northern District of Georgia, and this court shall have personal jurisdiction over any participant or beneficiary named in the action.



13.

The following is added to the introduction to Appendix M:

Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary, the eligibility freeze that occurred effective June 30, 2016 and is described in Section 2.3 of the Plan and
elsewhere shall not affect any person covered by this Appendix M but only to the extent of the benefits described in this Appendix M.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Board has caused this amendment to be executed this of 24th day of June, 2016.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF UNITED
PARCEL SERVICE OF AMERICA, INC.
 

/S/    DAVID P. ABNEY

David P. Abney

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

June 24, 2016



 

Exhibit 12

United Parcel Service, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

(dollar amounts in millions)
 

        

 

Six Months Ended
June 30,  Year Ended December 31, 

 2016  2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Earnings:        

Income before income taxes $ 3,699  $ 7,342 $ 4,637 $ 6,674 $ 974 $ 5,776
Add: Interest expense 187  341 353 380 393 348
Add: Interest factor in rental expense 96  223 225 192 206 210

Total earnings $ 3,982  $ 7,906 $ 5,215 $ 7,246 $ 1,573 $ 6,334
 

Fixed charges:        

Interest expense $ 187  $ 341 $ 353 $ 380 $ 393 $ 348
Interest capitalized 5  13 11 14 18 17
Interest factor in rental expense 96  223 225 192 206 210

Total fixed charges $ 288  $ 577 $ 589 $ 586 $ 617 $ 575
 

    

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 13.8  13.7 8.9 12.4 2.5 11.0
 

    



 
Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATE OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, David P. Abney, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of United Parcel Service,
Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter
(the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial
reporting.

 

/S/    DAVID P. ABNEY

David P. Abney

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

August 5, 2016



 
Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATE OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, Richard N. Peretz, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of United Parcel Service,
Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter
(the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial
reporting.

 

/S/    RICHARD N. PERETZ
Richard N. Peretz

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

August 5, 2016



 
Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE

SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and in connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of United Parcel Service, Inc. (the “Corporation”)
for the period ended June 30, 2016, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), the undersigned, the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Corporation, certifies that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934;
and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Corporation.

 

/S/    DAVID P. ABNEY

David P. Abney

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

August 5, 2016



 
Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE

SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and in connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of United Parcel Service, Inc. (the “Corporation”)
for the period ended June 30, 2016, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), the undersigned, the Senior Vice President, Chief
Financial Officer and Treasurer of the Corporation, certifies that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934;
and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Corporation.

 

/S/    RICHARD N. PERETZ
Richard N. Peretz

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

August 5, 2016


